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M anagem ent Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the St. James Parish Council we offer readers of the Parish Council's financial 
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Parish Council's 
government for the fiscal year ended Decem ber 31, 2003. 

Financial Highlights 

The Parish Council's assets exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2003, by $66,978,501 
(net assets). Of this amount, $4,138,063 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the 
Parish Council's ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 

The Parish Council's total net assets decreased $1,624,926 over the previous year with 
$1,280,537 of the decrease resulting from governmental activities and $344,389 resulting 
from business-type activities. 

At Decem ber 31, 2003, the Parish Council's governm ental fund statements reported 
combined ending fund balances of $18,393,832, a decrease of $2,577,599 from the previous 
year. Of this amount, $16,005,765 remains in the various fund types of the Parish Council as 
unreserved. 

The General Fund, the Parish Council's primary operating fund, reported an unreserv ed fund 
balance of $3,582,634 and a decrease in total fund balance from the last fiscal year of 
$867,050. 

Total bonded debt and capital leases decreased from the prior year by $633,691. During the 
fiscal year, the Parish Council issued new bonded debt (certificates of indebtedness) in the 
amount of $500,000. 

Overview of the Financial Statem ents 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serv e as an introduction to the St. Jam es Parish Council's 
basic financial statem ents. The Parish Council's basic financial statem ents are com prised of three 
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the 
financial statements. There is additional supplementary inform ation following the financial statements 
that may be of interest to the reader. 

financial statem ents 

Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overv iew of the 
Parish Council's financial position, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. They include a 
Statem ent of Net Assets and a Statem ent of Activities These statem ents appear on pages 15 to 18 
of this report. 

The Statem ent of Net Assets presents the Parish Council's assets less its liabilities at year end. The 
difference betw een these assets and liabilities is reported as net assets. Changes in net assets over time 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Parish Council is im proving or 
deteriorating. 

The Statem ent of Activities pre sents inform ation showing how the Parish Council's net assets changed 
during the fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (for 
example, accounts payable and earned but unused vacation leave.) 



Both statem ents attem pt to distinguish functions of the Parish Council that are principally supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to 
recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). 
Govern mental activities include general government, public safety, highways and streets, public 
transportation, health and welfare, culture and recreation, and econom ic development and assistance 
expenditures. Business-type activities include gas and water distribution and juvenile detention. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the St. James Parish Council itself (the 
primary government), but also separate legal governmental entities (component units) to which the Parish 
Council may be obligated to provide financial assistance. Component units are presented as separate 
colum ns in fund financial statem ents. The component unit agencies issue separate, independently 
audited financial statements. Financial statements for each of the individual com ponent units m ay be 
obtained at the component unit's adm inistrative offices. 

The governm ent-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19 to 32 of this report. 

Fund financial statem ents 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over re sources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Parish Council, like other state and local 
governm ents, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate com pliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the Parish Council's funds can be divided into two categories: govern m ental funds 
and proprietary funds. 

Governm ental funds. Governm ental funds are used to account for essentially the sam e functions 
reported as governmenta l activities in the government-wide financial sta tements. Unlike the govern m ent- 
wide financial statem ents, however, governm ental fund financial statem ents focus on near-term inflows 
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
of the fiscal year. Such information m ay be useful in evaluating the Parish Council's near-term financing 
requirements. 

Because the focus of governm ental funds is narro wer than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to com pare the inform ation presented for governmental funds with sim ilar 
information presented for governmenta l activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing 
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing 
decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the govern mental funds statem ent of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
com parison betw een governmenta l funds and governmental activities. 

The Parish Council m aintains 38 individual governmental funds. Inform ation is presented separately in 
the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Road & Bridge Maintenance Fund, 
Public Safety Fund, and Padshwide Road Improvement Fund, all of which are considered to be major 
funds. Data from the other 34 governm ental funds are com bined into a single, aggregated presentation. 

Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining 
statem ents as supplementary information. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 19 to 24 of this report. 

Proprietary funds, The Parish Council maintains and presents two types of proprietary funds 
enterprise and internal service, which can be found on pages 25 to 32 of this report. 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
govern ment-wide financial statements. The Parish Council has tw o enterprise funds, the St. James 
Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System Fund, which accounts for expenses to distribute natura l gas 
and water, and the St. James Youth Center Fund, which accounts for the expenses for juvenile detention. 



Intern al service funds are an accounting tool used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among 
various functions. The Parish Council uses an internal serv ice fund to account for its self-insura d health 
insurance program . Because this serv ice predom inately benefits govern mental rather than business-type 
functions, it has been included within governm ental activities in the governm ent-wide financial 
statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the sam e type of inform ation as the govern m ent-wide financial statem ents, only 
in more detail. The St. Jam es Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System Fund and the St. Jam es Youth 
Center Fund are considered to be major funds of the Parish Council. 

Notes to financial statem ents. The notes provide additional inform ation that is essential to a full 
understanding of the information provided in the govem ment-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 33 to 64 of this report. 

Other information. The combining statements referred to eadier in connection with nonmajor 
governm ental funds are presented im m ediately following the notes to the financial statem ents. 
Com bining fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 70 to 92 of this report. 

Governm ent-w ide Financial Analysis 

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, the Parish Council 
im plemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 34, "Basic Financial 
Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments" for the year 
ended Decem ber 31, 2003. As a result, the accom panying basic financial statem ent consolidates all of 
the Parish Council's government financial activity into two colum ns, one for governmental activities and 
one for business activities. The major changes that are reflected in this consolidated presentation are: 

~ Depreciation for all capital assets including buildings, machinery and equipm ent, and land 
im provem ents has been included in expenses. 

~ All infrastructure assets have been included as capital assets and depreciated. 

~ The total liability for accrued benefits payable has been recorded in the statem ent of net 
assets. 

Other reconciling differences betw een the govern ment-wide financial statements and the fund financial 
statements are described on pages 21 and 24. W e have restated the beginning balances at Decem ber 
31, 2002, to reflect these changes. For the year of im plem entation, we have not, however, prepared 
com parative financial statements for the prior fiscal year. W e are unable, therefore, to make com parisons 
on a government-wide basis betw een fiscal years. A co m parative analysis will be made in future years 
when prior year information is available. 

As noted earlier, net assets m ay serve over time as a useful indicator of the Parish Council's financial 
position. In the case of St. James Parish Council, governm ental activities net assets exceeded liabilities 
by $51,765,384 at December 31,2003. 



The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets for 2003: 

St. James PariSh Council 
Condensed Statement of Net Assets 

December 31. 2003 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 

Long-term liabilities outstanding 
Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related  debt 
Restricted 
Unrestricted  
Total ass ets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 21,853,450 
40T564,283 
62~417~733 
8,488,824 
2r163T525 
10,652,349 

39,074,783 
15,383,862 

(2,693,261I 
$ 51,765,384 

Business- 
Type 

Activities 

$ 2,467,455 
14~4831198 
16r950~653 
703,713 

1T033r823 
1,737,536 

13,362,147 
1,134,646 
716~324 

$ 15,213,117 

$ 24,320,805 
55,047,481 

79,368,386 
9,192,537 
3,197,348 
12,389,885 

46,321,930 
16,518,508 
4,138,063 

$ 66,978,501 

Approximately 75.5% ($39,074,783) of the Parish Council's governmental net assets as of December 31, 
2003, reflects the government's investment in capital assets (land, buildings, infrastructure, machinery 
and equipment) less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Parish Council uses 
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Another 29.7% ($15,383,862) of the governmental net assets is subject to external restrictions 
on how these assets may be used, such as property tax approved by the electorate for specific purposes. 
The remaining governmental net assets (a negative $2,693,261), referred to as unrestricted, represents 
what may be used to meet ongoing obligations of the Padsh Council to citizens and creditors. 

See the Notes To The Financial Statements, pages 50 and 51, for additional information. 

Governm ental activities 

Governmental activities account for 77.3% of the Parish Council's net assets. One of the major 
com ponents of general revenue collected by governm ental activities is property taxes. In 2003, property 
taxes for the General Fund were assessed at a m illage ra te of 3.23 m ills for genera l government 
operations and 3.92 m ills for the adm inistration of health and welfare programs, the sam e rates as the 
prior year. Taxes collected, however, decreased slightly due to a 0.8% decrease in taxable assessed 
valuation. Other taxes for governmental activities include In Lieu of Taxes ($508,327), Sales and Use 
Taxes ($3,434,657), Alcoholic Beverages ($22,808), Franchise Fees ($63,704), and other taxes 
($144,185). 

Other vadances in governmental activities include 

* Federal awards increased $854,309. The majodty of the increase is due to additional funding 
for hazard mitigation and disaster assistance ($580,322) and coastal impact assistance 
($164,305). 

* Sales and use tax collections decreased $248,666, a 6.8% decrease, which continues a 
trend over the last two years. The reason for the decrease has been a reduction of 
maintenance and equipment expenditures at the local industrial plants. 



4, Expenses for additional firefighters' equipm ent and fire departm ents operations increased 
significantly. 

The following is a sum mary of activity for 2003: 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 
Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Other ta xes 
Fines and forfeits 
Intergovernmental 
Unrestricted grants and contributions 
Other general revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenses; 
Genera l government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recre ation 
Economic development and assistance 
Interest on long-term  debt 
Gas and water 
Youth detention 

Total expenses 
Decre ase in net assets before tra nsfers 
Tra nsfers 
Decre ase in net assets 
Net Assets 01/01/2003 
Net Assets 12/31/2003 

Governm enta l 
Activities 

Business- 
type 

Activities Total 

$ 1,105,125 $ 4,376,160 
3,060,308 90,935 
374.854 

8,015,035 
3,434,657 
739,024 
223.107 

454.889 

230,087 

2,400 
68,870 

$ 5,481,285 
3,151,243 
374,854 

8,245,122 
3,434,657 
739,024 
225,507 
68,870 
454.889 

I~111~605 185,693 1,297,298 
18,518,604 4,954,145 23,472,749 

4,345,245 
2,278,661 
3,729,931 
1,409,290 
623,818 

2,843,143 
2,007,078 
2,093,578 
392.697 

19T723~441 
(1,204,837) 
(75~700) 

(1,280,537) 
53,0451921 

$ 51,765.384 

3,120,024 
2.288.593 
5~408~617 
(454,472) 
110r083 

(344,389) 
15.557.506 

$ 15,213,117 

4,345,245 
2,278,661 
3,729,931 
1,409,290 
623,818 

2,843,143 
2,007,078 
2,093,578 
392,697 

3,120,024 
2~288~593 
25v132t058 
(1,659,309) 

34,383 
(1,624,926) 
68,603,427 

$ 66,978,501 



The following graph is a com parison of program revenues and program expenses for all govern m ental 
activities. This chart is intended to give the reader an idea of the degree to which govern mental activities 
are self-supporting: 

The following pie chart illustrates the com position of govem mental activities revenue and its percentage 
in relation to total governm ent revenues: 



Business-type activities 

The St. Jam es Parish Council has two business-type activities: The St. James Parish Gas & W ater 
Distribution System and the St. Jam es Youth Center. The Gas and W ater Distribution System 's principal 
activities are the providing of gas and water services to the citizens and businesses of the parish. The 

St. James Parish Youth Center's principal activity is to provide juvenile detention. 

The St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System's net assets increased $354,338 in fiscal year 
2003, which is an increase from $9,229,713 for fiscal year 2002. The most significant change in net asset 
position is from amounts invested in the water distribution system, which is a net increase of $854,347. 
The major addition is the new two million gallon per day clarifier constructed at the east bank water plant. 

The St. James Youth Center's net assets decreased $698,727 in fiscal year 2003, as compared to a 
$748,892 decrease in fiscal year 2002. The major components of the decrease are: a decrease in 
investments of $198,691 and a decrease in receivables of $79,742. The Youth Center continues to 
experience declining revenues due to a drop in the juvenile inmate population. The average daily census 
for 2003 was 41 youths per day com pared to over 60 youths per day three years ago. Cost re ductions 
have been im plem ented by reducing the staff thro ugh attrition and reducing overtim e. The staff continues 
to actively pursue additional clients and is working to increase the average daily census to 45 youths per 
day. 

The following graph is a com parison of program revenues and program expenses for the two business 
type activities. 



The following pie chart illustrates the com position of business-type activities revenue end its percentage 
in relation to total business-type revenues: 

Financial Analysis of the Parish Council's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Parish Council uses fund accounting to ensure and dem onstrate com pliance with 
finance-related legal require ments. 

Governm ental Funds: The focus of governm ental funds is to provide inform ation on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Padsh 
Council's financing requirem ents. In particular, unreserved fund balance m ay serv e as a useful measure 
of a governm ent's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

The combined ending fund balance for all govemmental funds at December 31, 2003, was $18,393,832. 
Of this amount, $16,005,765 was included in unreserved fund balance with the remainder of $2,388,067 
reserv ed for debt serv ice and advances to other funds. The co m bined ending fund balance at the end of 
the year decreased $2,577,599 from $20,971,431 at the end of the prior year. The reduction in total fund 
balances is primarily attributable to spending on capital construction projects in 2003. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Parish Council and is considered a major fund under 
criteria set forth by GASB Statement Number 34. At the end of the current fiscal year, the General Funds 
unreserved fund balance was $3,582,634. Compared with the unreserved fund balance of $4,449,684 at 
the end of 2002, fund balance declined $867,050 in 2003. The decrease in fund balance was a result of 
operating transfers to other funds for major capital construction, mainly the new Lutcher Senior Center. 

The Parish Council has three other governmental funds that are considered major funds. Those funds 
include the Road and Bridge M aintenance Fund, the Public Safety Fund, and the Parishwide Road 
Im provement Fund. A brief discussion of these funds follows: 



Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund: This fund 
maintenance of the Parish Council's roads and bridges 

is used to account for the construction and 
It also provides funding to the Parishwide Road 

Improvement Fund when the Parish Council conducts major road improvement/maintenance programs. 
The unreserved fund balance decreased $662,788 from $2,316,037 at the end of 2002 to $1,653,249. 
The decrease in fund balance resulted from transfers to the Parishwide Road Im provem ent Fund. 

Public Safety Fund: This fund accounts for the operating and capital expenditures of the Parish's six 
volunteer fire obpartm ents. In addition, a portion of its revenues is used to fund health serv ices for the 
Parish's residents. The unreserved fund balance at the end of 2003 was $2,021,656, a decrease of 
$263,663 from an unreserved balance of $2,285,319 at the end of 2002. The decrease is a result of an 
incre ase in expenditures for fire fighting equipment and the construction of a new fire station in the 
Union/Convent area. 

Parishwide Road Improvement Fund: This fund is used to account for major road 
im provem ent/m aintenance program s. As m entioned earlier, funding iF provided by transfers from the 
Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund. The unreserved fund balance  was $-0- at the end of the fiscal year. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Difference s between the original budget and the final amended budget were $26,700 and can be briefly 
summarized as follows: 

~ General government increases in the amount of $57,600 primarily due to the addition of 
the Graphic Information System (GIS) operations. 

~ Public safety increases of $49,600 attributable to higher prisoner care costs. 

~ Health and welfare decreases in the amount of $84,100 due to lower than anticipated 
adm inistration salaries, and a reduction in appropriations for the W heels To W ork 
Pro gram . 

~ Capital expenditures decreased $47,100 due to management cost reductions 

~ Total budgeted revenues increased a modest $41,400 

~ Operating tra nsfers out increased $388,500, mainly due to increased transfers needed to 
fund construction of the Lutcher Senior Center. 

Capital Asset and Debt Adm inistration 

Capital assets. The Parish Councirs investm ent in capital assets for its governm ental and business-type 

activities as of December 31, 2003, amounts to $55,047,481 (net of accumulated depreciation). This 
investment in ca pital assets includes land, buildings and system im provements, m achinery and 
equipment, roads, and drainage systems. The total increase in investm ent in capital assets for the 
currant fiscal year was $1,277,359, which includes a $1,325,986 increase for governmental activities 
(3.4%) and a $48,627 decrease for business-type activities (0.3%). 

Major capital events during the current fiscal year were: 

~ Completion of the Central Canal Hazard Mitigation Project in the amount of $450,232. 

~ Construction of the new elderly center in Lutcher amounted to $773,242 (construction was 
not complete as of the end of the fiscal year). 

~ Capital expenditures of $375,080 for additional transit buses. 

Completion of construction of the Vacherie Branch Library in the amount of $1,254,412 



A summary of the Parish Council's capital assets (net of depreciation) follows: 

St. Jam es Padsh Council 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 
Decem ber 31. 2003 

Land 
Buildings 
System im provem ents 
Im provem ents other than buildings 
M achinery  and equipm ent 
Library  collection , 
Infrastructure 

Construct ion in progress 
Total 

Long-term debt 

Governmental 
Act ivities 

$ 1,829,767 
5.334.759 

419,450 
3,674,323 
329,491 

26,221,023 
2,755~470 

$ 40,564,283 

Business-type 
Act rivities 

$ 
5,142,594 
9,123,955 

199,767 

16~882 
$ 14,483,198 

$ 1,829,767 
10,477,353 
9,123,955 
419,450 

3,874,090 
329,491 

26,221,023 
2,772,352 

$ 55r047r481 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Parish Council had total debt outstanding of $9,495,836. Of this 
amount, $6,955,000 is general obligation bonds secured by property taxes. The outstanding debt also 
includes $219,000 of public improvement bonds secured by excess sales and use tax revenue, $620,000 
of certificates of indebtedness secured by excess general revenue, and $764,074 of revenue bonds 
secured by excess revenue of the St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System . A sum mary of 
the Parish Council's outstanding long-term debt follows: 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
O utstanding Debt 
Decem ber 31. 2003 

Govern mental 
Activities 

General obligation bonds $ 
Public im provem ent bonds 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Capital leases 

Revenue bonds (less amount deferred) 
Com pensated absences 

6,955,000 
219,000 
620,000 
205,897 

488,927 

Business-type 
Act dvities 

$ $ 6,955,000 
219,000 
620,000 
205,897 

764,074 764,074 
242,938 731,865 

Total $ 8,488,824 $ 1,007,012 $ 9,495,836 

Additional inform ation on the Parish Council's long-term debt can be found on pages 55 to 59 of the 
Notes to the Financial Statem ents. 



Econom ic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

At the time of the presentation of the fiscal year 2004 budget, sales and use tax collections were 
projected to moderately increase 2.4%. Collections through April 2004, however, are 14.5% less than 
collections for the same period in 2003. As stated eadier, the decline in sales and use tax collections is 
prim arily due to a reduction of m aintenance and equipment expenditures at the local hdustrial plants. 
This trend is expected to continue for the remainder of the year. 

On January 1, 2004, the Parish Council issued $6,450,000 of general obligation refunding bonds for the 
purpose of refunding $5,640,000 of outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series 1993, maturing 
April 1, 2005 to April I, 2013, inclusive, and $575,000 of outstanding General Obligation Refunding 
Bonds, Series 1994, m aturing March 1, 2005 to March 1, 2008, inclusive. The interest rate on the new 
bonds is 3.0 percent and ~e maturity date is April 1, 2013. The Parish Council completed the advance 
refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next ten years by $333,989. 

Requests for Inform ation 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of St. James Parish Council 
for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial inform ation should be addressed to the 
Department of Finance, P.O . Box 106, Convent, Louisiana, 70723. 



St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Statem ent of Net Assets 
Decem ber 31. 2003 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 
Internal balances 
Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Restricted assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Agreem ents for funded depreciation 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 
Other assets, net 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Accrued expenses 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Long-term liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 
Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for 
Debt service  and capital improvements 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Other purposes 

Unrestdcted 
Total net assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 7,078,318 
3,392,565 
10,679,807 

459,839 
43,860 
199.061 

40,564,283 

2,053,764 
16,875 
92,886 

1,307,505 
7,181,319 
10,652,349 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 560,983 
2,795 

710,479 

(463,403) 
132,937 
106,636 

819,408 
591,553 

14,483,198 
6.067 

16.950.653 

395,034 

61,771 
577.018 

217,672 
486,041 

1,737,536 

$ 7,639,301 
3,395,360 
11,390,266 

(3,564) 
176,797 
305,697 

819,408 
591.653 

66,047,481 
6.067 

2,448,798 
16,875 
154,657 
577.018 

1,525,177 
7,667,360 
12,389,885 

39,074,783 13,362,147 46,321,930 

1,866,590 
3,919,445 
3,041,199 
2,086,566 
4,470,062 

1,134,646 3,001,236 
3,919,445 
3,041,199 
2,086,566 
4,470,062 

(2,693,261) 716,324 4,138,063 
$ 51,765,384 $ 15,213,117 $ 66,978,501 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statem ent. 
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Total 
onent Units 

St. James 
Parish 

Clerk of Court 

St. James 
Parish 

$ 330,076 $ 1,023,454 

21,131 1,315,445 

149,093 
58.728 

3,442 

354.649 

4,639 

62,271 
66.910 

3,899,974 
3,383,923 

353,285 
344 

142,512 

241,535 
449.946 

1.187.622 

3,442 2,854,374 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Statem ent of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2003 

Functions: 
primary govem ment: 
Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and skeets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development 
and assistance 

Interest on long-term  debt 
Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Gas and water 
Youth detention 
Total business-type activities 
Total primary government 

Compo nent Units: 
St. James Clerk of Court 
St. James Parish Hospital 
Total component units 

$ 4,345,245 
2,278,661 
3,729,931 
1,409,290 
623,818 

2,843,143 
2,007,078 

2,093,579 
392,697 

19,723,441 

3,120,024 
2,288,593 

Program Revenues 

Charges for 
Services 

318,318 
113,227 

572,653 
73,093 

27,834 

Operating 
Grants and 
Contributions 

$ 338,608 
460,889 
310,800 
5,720 

176,827 
459,752 
3,600 

1,303,912 

Capital 
Grants and 
Contributions 

$ 31,812 

132,493 

95,906 
98,000 
16,643 

3,127,848 
1,248,312 

657.353 677.792 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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General Revenues 
Taxes 
Property taxes 
In lieu of taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Alco holic beverages 
Fra nchise fees 
Other 

Fines and forfeits 
Intergovernmental 
Unrestricted gra nts and co ntributions 
Interest on investments 
Other 

Transfers 
Total general revenues and tra nsfers 
Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 
Net assets - ending 



Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 

Govem mental 
Activities 

$ (3,655,307) 
(1,704,545) 
(3,286,638) 
(830,917) 
(277,992) 

(2,285,391) 
(1,959,001) 

(789,666) 
(392,697) 

115,183,154) 

8,015,035 
508,327 

3,434,657 
22,808 
63,704 
144,185 
223,107 

454,889 
144,480 
967,125 

(75,700) 
13,902,617 

(1,280,537) 

Business-type 
Activities 

7,824 

(949,346I 
(941,522) 
(941,522} 

230,087 

2,400 
68,870 

18,638 
167,055 
110,083 
597,133 
(344,389) 

(3,656,307) 
(1,704,545) 
(3,286,638) 
(830,917) 
(277,992) 

(2,285,391) 
(1,959,001) 

(789,666) 
(392,697) 

(15,183,154) 

8,245,122 
508,327 

3,434,657 
22,808 
63,704 
144,185 
225,507 
68,870 
454,889 
163,118 

1.134.180 
34,383 

14,499,750 

(1,624,926) 

Units 
Govern mental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

20.439 

20.439 

7,310 

7,310 
27.749 

11,318,4481 
(1,318,4481 

1,119,526 

47,572 
159,608 
661,663 

1,988,369 
669,921 



St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 
December 31. 2003 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncctlectibles) 
Interfund receivable 
Prepaid items 
Advances to other funds 
Inventory 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Deferre d revenues 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Reserved for: 
Advances 
Debt service 

Unre served, re ported in: 
General fund 
Special revenue funds 

Capital project funds 
Total fu nd balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

Genera l 

$ 1,162,382 
187,217 

2,618,806 
18,411 

Road and 
Bridge 

Maintenance 
Public 
Safety 

$ 677,374 $ 383,274 
141,215 528,033 

1,220,086 895,545 
50.000 

281,977 
43,860 

$ 4,020,676 $ 2,038,675 $ 2,138,829 

$ 337,106 
65,936 

35.000 

3,582,634 

3,582,634 
$ 4,020,676 

notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 63,376 
18,201 

303,849 
385,426 

$ 117,173 

117.173 

331.977 

1,653,249 1,689,679 

1,653,249 
$ 2,038,675 

2,021,656 
$ 2,138,829 



 

Parishwide 
Road 

Improvement 

822 

303,849 

Component Unit 
Other Total St. James 

Governmental Govern mental Parish 
Funds Funds Clerk of Court 

$ 4,330,490 
2,255,009 
5,213,308 
239,561 
16,679 

$ 6,544,342 
3,111,474 
9,947,745 
611,821 
16,679 
281,977 
43,860 

$ 330,076 

21,131 

$ 304,671 

304,671 

$ 696,652 
110,117 
16,875 
95.110 
918.754 

2,056,090 

8,655,929 
424,274 

$ 1,518,978 
194,254 
16,875 
433,959 

2,164,066 

331,977 
2,056,090 

3,582,634 
11,998,857 

424,274 

4,639 

4,639 

346,568 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of 
Govem mental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets 

Decem ber 31. 2003 

Total fund balances per financial statements 

Am ounts reported for governm enta l activities in the statement 
of net assets are different because: 

Component Unit 
St. Jam es 

Govern mental Perish 
Funds Clerk of Court 

$18,393,832 $ 346,568 

Capital assets are not re ported in the fund financial 
statements because they are not current financial resources, 
but they are re ported in the statement of net assets. 40,564,283 3,442 

Certain long-term assets are not re ported in the fund financial 
statem ents beca use they are not available to pay current- 
period expenditures, but they are re ported as assets in the 
statement of net assets. 910,856 

Long-term liabilities are not reported as fund liabilities 
because they are not due and payable in the curre nt period 
but they are presented as liet~lities in the statem ent of net 
assets. Balances at Dece m ber 31, 2003 are as follows: 
Accrued interest 
Bonds payable 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Capital leases 
Com pensated absences 

Assets and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund related to 
governmental programs are not reported in the govern menta l 
fund financial statem ents because they are presented on a 
differe nt acco unting basis, but they are presented as assets 
and liabilities in the statem ent of net assets. 

Net assets of governmental activities 

(92,886) 
(7,174,000) 
(620,000) 
(205,897) 
(488,927) 

The notes to the financial statem ents are an integral part of this statem ent. 

Statement D 

(62,271) 

287.739 



 

St. James Padsh Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
December 31. 2003 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Property 
Voluntary payments in lieu of taxes 
Sales and usa 
Alcoholic beverages (beer) 

Licenses and perm its 
Intergovernmentah 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for santice s 
Intere st 
In-kind co ntributions 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Cun'ent: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Heaith and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development and assistance 

In-kind expe nses 
Debt service 
Pdncipal 
Interest and fiso at charges 

Capital outlay 
Tota; expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expe nditures 

Ot her financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Debt proceeds 
Operating transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance , end of year 

1,645,348 
508,327 

1,241,465 
22,808 
375,311 

357.057 
463,028 
100,111 

31,989 
3,568 

118,644 
4,867,656 

2,505,658 
511,914 

1,026,700 

329,051 
3,568 

Road and 
Bridge 

Maintenance 
Public 
Safety 

$ 1,150,561 $ 906,674 

148,541 
298,399 
2,016 

16,663 12,629 

1,101 
1,617,281 919,303 

1,078,222 

482,565 389,361 

4,624 

402.041 

63,701 
15,269 
444,372 
925,383 

(6,080) 

20.000 

(867,050) (662,768) (263,663) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 
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Parishwide 
Road 

Improvement 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 4,630,349 

2,193,192 

2,394.894 
270,971 
93,010 
223.107 
673.580 
83,179 
423,715 

Component Unit 
Total St. James 

Govem mental Parish 
Funds Clerk of Coud 

$ 8,332.932 
508,327 

3,434,657 
22,808 
375,311 

2,900,492 
1,032,398 
195,137 
223,107 
673,580 
144,480 
427,283 

878,088 

1,559,364 
997,521 
247A50 

1,379,450 
528,202 

1,806.892 
1,621,908 
1,318,961 
423.715 

4,065,022 
1,911,476 
2,203,760 
1,379,450 
528,202 

2,833,592 
1,621,908 
1,648,012 
427,283 

(857,960) 

960,420 

(103,000) 
857,420 

(54O) 

540 

(3,009,785) 

3,344,145 
500,000 

(783,558) 

11,919.851 
$ 11,136.293 

(3,001,899) 

4,329,189 
500,000 

(4,404,889) 
424,300 

(2,577,599) 

20,971,431 
$ 18,393,632 

$ 

3.105 

674,687 
7,310 

685,102 

649,813 

649,813 

35,289 

35.289 

311,279 
$ 346.568 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Govern mental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 

Component Unit 
St. James 

Governmental Parish 
Funds Clerk of Court 

Net change in total fund balances per fund financial statements $ (2,577,599) $ 35,289 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in the fund 
financial statements because they use current financial 
resources, but they are presented as assets in the statem ent 
of net assets and depreciated over th eir estim ated econom ic 
lives. This is the amount by which current capital outlays of 
$3,958,986 ($0 for the Clerk of Court) exceed ed depreciation 
of $2,582,999 ($1,754 for the Clerk of Court). 1,375,987 (1,754) 

Revenues that are not available to pay curre nt obligations are 
not reported in the fu nd financial statements, but they are 
presented as revenues in the statement of activities. (311,185) 

The proceeds from the issuance of bonds provide current 
financial re sources and are reported in the fund financial 
statements, but they are pre sented as liabilities in the 
statement of net assets. (500,000) 

Repayment of principal on long-term debt consume resources 
of govern mental funds but do not impact net assets. 851,791 

Generally expenditure s recognized in the fund financial 
statem ents are lim ited to only those that use curre nt financial 
resources but expenses, including interest and compensated 
absences, are recognized in the statement of activities when 

they are incurred. (69,439) (5,786) 

Gains and losses are not presented in the fund financial 
statem ents because they do not provide or use current 
financial resources, but they are presented in the statement of 
activities. 

Change in net assets of govem m enta l activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Statement F 

$ 27,749 



St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Assets 
December 31, 2003 

Assets 
Current assets: 
Cash end cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 
Prepaid insurance 
Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash eq uivalents 
Certifica tes of deposit 
Investments 
Agreement for fu nded depreciation 
Total restricted assets 

Capital assets, net 
Other assets, net 
Tota l noncurrent assets 
Total assets 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities (payable from current assets): 
Accounts payable 
Liability for claims 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 
Current maturities of Iong-tarm debt 
Compensated absences 
Accrued expenses 
Total current liabilities (payable from current assets 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Noncurren t liabilities: 
Notes payable 
Advances to other funds 
Revenue bonds 
Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets 
Inves ted in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for debt service and capital improvements 
Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

Entem rise Funds 

St. James Parish 
Gas & W ater 
Distribution 

System 

335,408 

337,555 

128,176 
101,029 
902,168 

819,408 
250,000 
341,553 

1,410,961 
9,283,331 

6,067 
10,700,359 
11,602,527 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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304,674 

157,026 

150,235 
61,771 
673,706 
577,018 

306,977 
460,775 
767,752 

2,018,476 

8,162,280 
1,134,646 

St. James 
Youth 
Center 

$ 225,575 
2,795 

372,924 
60O 

4~61 
5,607 

612,262 

5,199,867 

5,199,867 
5,812,129 

90,360 

92,703 

183,063 

183,063 

5,199,867 

$ 560,983 
2,795 

710,479 
600 

132,937 
106,636 

1,514,430 

819A08 
250,000 
341,553 

395,034 

157,026 

242,938 
61,771 
856,769 
577,018 

306,977 
460,775 
767,752 

2,201,539 

13,362,147 
1,134,646 

287,125 429,199 716,324 
$ 9,584,051 $ 5,629,066 $ 15,213,117  



Internal 
Service 
Fund 

533,976 
281,09t 
3,586 

616,655 

532 
340,000 

478,123 
$ 478,123" 

St. James 
Parish 
Hospital 

1,023,454 

1,315,445 

149,093 
58,728 

2,546,720 

3,899,974 
3,899,974 
3,383,923 

7,283,897 
9,830,617 

353,285 

344 
79,603 
161,932 
142,812 
737,676 

449,946 

449,946 
1.187.622 

2,854,374 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Pro pdetary Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for sales and services 
Other 
Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Cost of sales and services 
Payrolls 
General and adm inistrative 
Depre ciation and amortization 
Total operating expenses 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Property taxes 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Grants 
Court fines 
Other 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before transfers 

Operating transfers in 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning 

Net assets, ending 

Entero rise Funds 
St. James Padsh 
Gas & W ater 
Distribution 
System 

$ 3,127,848 
162,274 

3,290,122 

1,301,311 
724,177 
665,601 
373,508 

3,064,597 

St. James 
Youth 
Center Tota l 

$ 1,248,312 
4,221 

1,252,533 

180,999 
1,110,703 
782,589 
214,302 

2,288,593 

$ 4,376,160 
166,495 

4,542,655 

1,482,310 
1,834,880 
1,448,190 
587,810 

5~353,190 

226,525 (1,036,060) (810,535) 

15,287 

(55,427) 
68,870 

28.730 

254,255 

100.083 

354,338 

9.229.713 

$ 9,584,051 

230,087 
3,351 

90,935 
2,400 
560 

327.333 

(708,727) 

10.000 

(698,727) 

6.327.793 

230,087 
18,638 
(55,427) 
159,805 
2,400 
560 

356.063 

(454,472) 

110.083 

(344,389) 

15,557,506 

$ 5,629,066 $15,213,117 

The notes to the financial statements are an integra l part of this statement. 
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Internal 
Service 
Fund 

$ 1,908,980 
1,316 

1,910,296 

1,517,092 

439,097 

St. James 
Parish 

Hospital 

$ 5,862,283 
661,663 

6,523,946 

1,649,800 
2,738,412 
2,424,751 
362,442 

7,175,405 

(45,693) (651,459) 

8,249 

8,249 

(37,644) 

1,119,526 
159,608 

(2,639) 
47.572 

(2,687) 
1,321,380 

669.921 

(37,644) 669,921 

515,767 

$ 476,123 $ 8,642,995 



 

St. James Padsh Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts fi'om customers and users 
Receipts from interfund services provided 
Rec eipts from other operating activities 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments for interfund services used 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows  from nonce pital financing activities: 
Advances from other funds 
Misce llaneous receipts 
Subsidy from grants 
Pro perty taxes and revenue shadng monies rece ived 
Payments on advance s from other funds 
Tra nsfer from St. James Parish Council 
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and re lated financing activities: 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal paid on Iong-tarm debt 
Long-term debt 
Capital contributions 
Long-term debt borrowings 
Net cash used for ca pital and re lated 
financing activities 

Cash flows fro m investing activities: 
Maturation of investments 
Purchase of investments 
Interest re ce ived 

Net ca sh (used in) provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and ca sh equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Entem rise Funds 
St. James Parish 
Gas & W ater 
Distribution 
System 

$3,254,753 
31.025 

(1,870,650) 
(724,177) 
(92,448) 
598.503 

106.619 

68.870 

(50,000) 

(515,742) 
(295,000) 
(66,186) 
100.083 

291,273 

(250,000) 
14,014 
55,287 

2,434 
1.152,382 
$1,154,816 

St. James 
Youth 
Center 

1,337,985 

(746,611) 
(1,145,923) 

(1,140) 
(555,689) 

2,960 
90,935 
224,376 

10,000 
328,271 

198,691 

3,351 
202.042 

(25,376) 
250,951 

$ 226,575 

$4,592,738 
31.025 

(2,617,261) 
(1,870,100) 
(93,588) 
42,814 

106,619 
2,960 

159,805 
224,376 

(5O,O00) 
10.000 

453.760 

(515,742) 
(295,000) 
(66,186) 
100.083 

(776,845) 

489,964 

(250,000) 
17,365 

257,329 

(22,942) 
1,403,333 
$1,380,391 



Internal 
Service 
Fund 

$ 1,934,906 

(1,890,657) 

St. James 
Parish 
Hospital 

$ 4,630,572 

752,593 
(2,730,384) 
(3,215,332) 

(157,337) 
8,249 

(149,088) 

5,375 
1,101,329 

(1,227,819) 
(19,641) 
(2,639) 
6,233 

629.549 

382,856 

159.608 

(104,839) 372,300 
638,815 651,154 

$ 533,976 $ 1,023,454 
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St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Pro prietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Entem dse Funds 
St. James Parish 
Gas & W ater 
Distribution 
System 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by 
operating activities 
Operating income (loss) $ 225,525 
Adjustments to reco ncile operating inco me to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 373,508 
Provision for uncollectible accounts (1,340) 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 961 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Accounts receivable (11,020) 
Contra ctual settlements receivable 
Due from St. James Parish Council 2,008 
Inventory 26,146 

Prepaid expenses (20,086) 
Accounts payable 46,297 
Liability for claims 
Due to St. James Parish Council (92,448) 
Com pensated absences 19,576 
Accrued expenses 9,465 
Customers' deposits 19,921 
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 598,503 

Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow statement include: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restdcted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

$ 335,408 

819,408 
$1,154,816 

The notes to the financial statements are an integra l part of this statement. 

Statement I (concluded) 
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St. James 
Youth 
Center 

$ (1,036,060) $ (810,535) 

214,302 

53,461 

85,453 

(600) 
(2,984) 

101,634 
22,502 

(54o) 
6,954 
189 

$ (555,689) 

$ 225,575 

$ 225,575 

587,810 
(1,340) 
54,422 

74,433 

1,408 
23,162 
81,548 
68.799 

(92,988) 
26,530 
9,644 
19,921 

$ 42,814 

$ 560,983 

819,408 
$1,380,391 



Internal 
Service 
Fund 

St. James 
Parish 
Hospital 

$ (45,693) $ (651,459) 

24,610 

532 
65,000 

$ 44,240 

362,442 

(47,954) 
(458,189) 

(9,649) 
(1,847) 

151,573 

8,396 
84,136 

$ (562,551) 

$ 533.976 $ 1,023,454 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

NTRO DUCTIO N 

The St. James Parish Council (Parish Council) is the governing authority for St. James Parish and is a 
political subdivision of the State of Louisiana. The Parish Council is governed by seven councilmen 
representing the various districts within th e Parish. The councilm en serve four-year terms, which expire on 
January 12, 2004. 

Louisiana Revised Statute 33:1236 gives the Parish Council various powers in regulating and directing the 
affairs of the Parish and its inhabitants. The more nota ble of these are the power to make re gulations for 
their own govern ment, to regulate the construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, and drainage 
systems, to regulate the sale of alcoholic beverages, and to provide for the health and welfare of the poor, 
disadvantaged, and unemployed in the Parish. Funding to accomplish these tasks is provided by property 
taxes, sales taxes, service charges, beer and alcoholic beverage permits, state revenue sharing, and 
various other state and federal grants. 

To fulfill its responsibilities to the poor, disadvantaged, and unem ployed in the Parish, th e Parish Council 
may provide for specialized health service programs, emergency food and m edical assistance, fam ily 
planning assistance, recreation and service centers for the elderly, consumer education, agricultural 
assista nce, and economic development activities. To provide funding for these activities, the Parish 
Council, in addition to local funding sources, performs the functions of a community action agency under the 
terms and previsions of the United States Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. 

SUM MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accom panying financial statem ents of the St. James Parish Council have been pra pared in 

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America as 
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
sta ndard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

B. REPORTING ENTITY 

As the governing authority of the Parish, the Parish Council is the reporting entity. The financial reporting 
entity consists of (a) the primary government (Parish Council), (b) organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature and significance 
of their relationship with the primary governm ent are such that exclusion would cause the reporting 
entity's financial statements to be misleading or incom plete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria for 
determ ining which component units should be considered part of the Parish Council for financial 
reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity 
is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determ ining financial 
accountability. The criteria includes: 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statem ents (Continued 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued) 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body 
and, 

a, The ability of the Parish Council to impose its will on that 
organization and/or 

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to or im pose specific financial burdens on the Padsh 
Council. 

2. Organizations for which the Parish Council does not appoint a voting 

majority but which are fiscally dependent on the Parish Council. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements 
would be m isleading if data of the org anization is not included 
because of the nature or significance of the relationship. 

Based on the previous criteria, the Padsh Council has determ ined that the following com ponent units are 

part of the reporting entity: 

Crita da Type of 
Com ponent Unit Fiscal Year End Used Presentation 

St. James Padsh Gas and W ater 
Distribution System June 30 1,3 Blended 

St. James Youth Center December 31 1,3 Blended 

St. James Parish Clerk of Court June 30 2,3 Discrete 

St. James Parish Hospital March 31 1,3 Discrete 

Complete financial statements for each of the individual com ponent units may be obtained at the com ponent 
unit's adm inistrative offices, except for the St. James Youth Center, which does not issue separate financial 
statements. 

The Parish Council's financial statements do not include the com ponent units that are m ulti-parish 
com ponent units. The m ulti-parish component units include: 

M ulti-Parish Com ponent Unit Fiscal Year End Component Unit of 

Ascension-St. James Airport & Transportation Authority June 30 Ascension Parish 

District Attorney of the Twenty-third Judicial District December 31 Ascension Parish 

Twenty-third Judicial District Indigent Defender Board December 31 Ascension Parish 
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ST. JAMES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

B. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued) 

Considered in the determ inations of com ponent units of the re porting entity were  the St. James Parish 
School Board, St. James Padsh Assessor, St. Jam es Padsh Sheriff, and the various m unicipalities in the 
Parish. it was determ ined that these governmental entities are not com ponent units of the St. James 
Padsh Council reporting entity. All are governed by independently elected officials. The Parish Council 
oversight unit neither appoints governing Boards nor designates management. Furthermore, the Parish 

Council has no ability to significantly influence operations, nor does it have any accountability for fiscal 
matters of the entities. They are considered by th e Parish Council to be separate autonomous 
govern ments and issue financial statem ents separate from those of the St. James Parish Council 
re porting entity. 

The Parish Council is responsible for appointing the m em bers of the board of the St. James Housing 
Authority. The Parish Council's accountability for the Housing Authority does not extend beyond making 
the appointments. It was determined that the St. James Housing Authority is a related organization to 
the Parish Council. 

C. GOVERNMENT-W IDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the St. James Parish Council and its 
com ponent units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been re moved from these 
statements. Govern m ental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
re venues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which re ly to a significa nt extent on fees 
and charges for support. Likewise, the St. Jam es Parish Council is reported separately from certain 
legally separa te com ponent units for which the St. James Padsh Council is financially accounta ble. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applica nts who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 

segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as genera/ra venues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. 

The govern ment-wide financial statem ents are reported using the econom ic resources m easurem ent 
focus and the accrual basis of acco unting, as are the proprieta ry fund financial statements. Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses net of uncollectible amounts are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the tim ing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in 
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar item s are recognized as re venue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements im posed by the pro vider have been met. 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEM ENT 
PRESENTATION 

Govern mental fund financial statem ents are reported using the current financial resources m easure m ent 
focus and the m odified accrual basis of eccounting. Revenues are ra co gnized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government co nsiders revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the 
curre nt fiscal period. Expenditures generally are reco rded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to com pensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when a payment is due. 

Franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all co nsidered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Property 

taxes that are measurable and available (receivable within the current period and collected within the 
current period or within 60 days thereafter) are recognized in the year of levy. Sales and use tax 
revenues are co nsidere d measurable when the underlying tra nsaction occ urs and are re cognized as 
revenue if collected soon enough to meet the availability criteria. Revenue from grants is recognized in 
the fiscal year in which dl eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include 
timing requirements , which specify the year when the resources ca n be used. All other revenue items 
are considered to be measurable and available only when ca sh is received by the government. 

The Parish Council reports the following major govemmental funds: 

The General fund is the govern ment's primary operating fund. It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 

The Road and Bridge M aintenance fund is the government's prim ary fund for 
the maintenance  of existing re ads and roadside are as. This fund is supported 
by property taxes, state re venue shadng, the State of Louisiana Padsh 
Transportation Fund, and the Parish Royalty Fund. 

The Public Safety fund accounts for th e payments to the six volunteer fire 
departments and for the health services provided to the re sidents of the parish 
This fund is supported by property taxes. 

The Parishwide Road Improvem ent fund accounts for padshwide re ad 
im provements which include the construction of new roads and bridges. This 
fu nd is supported by transfers from the Road and Bridge Maintenance fund. 

The Parish Council reports the following major prepdetary funds 

The SL James Parish Gas and Water Distribution System fund accounts for the 
sale and distribution of gas and water to the residents of St. James Parish. 

The SL Jam es Youth Center fund acco unts for the maintenance, opera tions and 

management of a juvenile center for children who enter the juvenile justice 
system . 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

D. M EASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS O F ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEM ENT 

PRESENTATION (Continued) 

Additionally, the Parish Council reports the following governmental fund types: 

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
that are legally restdcted to expenditure s for specified purposes. 

Debt service funds account for the accum ulation of resources for the payment 
of principal and interest on long-term obligation debt of govern mental funds. 

Internal service fund accounts for the provision of group health and life 
insurance provided to the Parish Councirs em ployees. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to Decem ber 1, 1989, 
genera lly are followed in both govern ment-wide and proprietary fund financial statem ents to the extent 
that those standards do not co nflict with or contra dict guidance  of the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board. Govern ments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance  for 
their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Parish Council 
has elected not to follow subsequent pdvate-sector guidance for the prim ary govern ment; however, the 
St. James Parish Hospital has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant pronounce ments of the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board, including those issued after Novem ber 30, 1989, that do not 
conflict nor contra dict GASB pronouncements. 

As a genera l rule the effect of interfund activity has been elim inated from the governm ent-wide financial 
statements. Exce ptions to this genera l ru le are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the 
Parish Council's water and gas function and various other functions of the govern ment. Elimination of 
these charges would distort the dire ct co sts and program revenues re ported for the various functions 
concern ed. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contdbutions, and 3) capital grants and 
co ntributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as genera l re venues rather than as program 
re venues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Opera ting 
revenues and expenses generally re sult from providing serv ices and producing and delivering goods in 
co nnection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating re venues of 
the Parish Council's enterprise fu nds and the Parish Council's internal service fund are charges to 
customers for sales and serv ices. The St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System fund also 
recognizes as opera ting revenue the portion of tapping fees intended to re cover the co st of connecting 
new custom ers to the system . Opera ting expenses for enterp rise funds and the internal serv ice  fund 
include the cost of sales and serv ices, adm inistrative expenses, and depre ciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY 

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For reporting purposes, cash and cash equivalents include interest-bearing demand deposits and 
certificates of deposit with a m aturity of three m onths or less from the date of acquisition. Under state 
law, the Parish Council may deposit funds within a fisca l agent bank organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. Further, the 
Parish Council m ay invest in time deposits or certifica tes of deposit of state banks organized under 
Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. 

State statutes authorize the Parish Council to invest in collateralized certifica tes of deposits, government 
backed securities, comm ercial paper, the sta te sponsore d investment pool, and m utual funds consisting 
solely of govern ment backed securities. Investm ents are stated at market value. 

3. Receivables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end 
of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund 
loans) or "advance s to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other 
outstanding balance s between funds are re ported as =due to/from other funds". Any re sidual balance s 
outstanding betw een the governmental activities and business-type activities and any balances not 
elim inated due to tim ing differences are re ported in the government-wide financial sta tements as "internal 
balances'. 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance  
re serve account in applica ble governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation 
and are not expendable available financial resources. 

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of allowance  for uncollectibles. 

Property taxes and the related state revenue sharing (which is based on population and homesteads in 
the Padsh) are recorded in the year assessed. Property taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, 
becom e due on Novem ber 15 of each year and become delinquent on Dece m ber 31. The taxes are 
generally collected in December of the current year and January and February of the ensuing year. 

4. Inventory and Prepaid Item s 

Inventory in th e General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consum ption. The inventory is 

valued at cost (first-in, first-out method), and the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual 
inventory items are re quisitioned by the different departments. 

Inventories in the St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System are stated at the lower of oost 

(weighted moving average) or market. Gas purchased in the system's lines and the water produce d by 
the system are expensed when purchased or purified. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued) 

4. Inventory and Prepaid Items (Continued) 

Inventories of the St. James Youth Center consist of clothing and food supplies which are stated at the 
lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and are recorded as expenses when co nsumed. 

Inventories of the St. James Parish Hospital consist of medical supplies and are stated at the lower of 

cost (first-in, first-out method) or market and are recorded as expenses when consumed. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future acco unting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and proprietary fund financial statem ents. 

5. Restricted Assets 

The St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System has restricted assets for debt retirement. The 
1973 Series and 1997 Refunding Series Bond re solutions established the following re stricted funds: 

This fund was established to provide for the payments of bond principal and interest. Deposits to the fu nd 
of l/6th of the next interest payment and 1/12th of the next principal payment are required monthly. 

This fund was established for the payments of bond principal and interest if the Sinking Fund is not 
capable of m eeting the paym ents. The bond ordinances require monthly deposits to the fund in an 
am ount that will increase the tota l amount on deposit, within a pedod not exceeding five years, to a sum 
equal to the highest principal and interest requirements in any succeeding fiscal year on the 1973 Series 
and the 1997 Refunding Series revenue bonds. 

This fund was established to pro vide for extensions, additions, improvements, re newals and replacement 
of the gas and water distribution system , it m ay also be used for bond maturity payments and interest 
payments if the Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund are not capable of meeting the payments. The 1973 
Series and the 1997 Refunding Series revenue bonds re quire 5% of the gross revenue of the St. James 
Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System collected be deposited to the fund after the re quire d deposits 
to the Sinking Fund and Reserve Fund have been made. 

The St. James Parish Hospital has assets where use is lim ited for fu nded depreciation 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued) 

6. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicablg governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the govern ment-wide financial statem ents. Capita l assets are defined by the Parish as 

assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 (equipment), $25,000 (land or land 
improvements), $50,000 (buildings) or $250,000 (infrastructure), and an estimated useful life in excess of 
one year. Such assets are recorded at historical co st or estim ated historical cost if purchased or 
co nstructed. Donated capital assets are re corded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 

The co sts of normal maintenance  and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 

extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets 
of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. No 
interest was capitatized in 2003. 

Property, plant, and equipment of the govern menta l funds, as well as the St. James Youth Center, are 
depre ciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets 
Buildings 
Building im provem ents 
Infrastructure 
Heavy equipment 
Vehicles 
Furnita re/office equipment 
Com puter equipment 

Years 
40 - 60 
7 - 20 
25 - 40 
10- 20 
5- 8 
5 
5 

The St. James Padsh Gas and W ater Distribution System's plant, pro perty, and equipment are stated at 
co st and are depre ciated using the stra ight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Utility plant, distribution system and co m ponents 
Transportation equipment 
Office fum itura , fixtures and equipment 

Years 
5 - 50 
5- 8 
3- 15 

The St. James Parish Clerk of Court's capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are 
capitalized at historica l cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are 
recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Clerk of Court 
maintains a threshold level of $500 or more for ca pitalizing ca pital assets. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued) 

7. Com pensated Absences 

Parish Council em ployees earn from 12 to 18 days of both annual and sick leave each year, depending 
upon length of service. Sick leave may be accum ulated without lim itation; however, annual leave may 
not be carried forward from one year to the next unless approved by the Parish President. Upon 
retirement, unused accum ulated sick leave from 15 to 60 days depending on length of serv ice, is paid to 
the employee at the em ployee's current rate of pay. Any unused annual leave is paid to the em ployee 
upon retirement or term ination. 

The cost of leave privileges is accrued when incurred in the govem ment-wide and propdetary fund 
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is re ported in the governmenta l funds only if they have 
matured, for exam ple as a result of em ployee resignations and retirements. 

The St. James Parish Clerk of Court's em ployees earn vacation and sick leave each year as follows: 

Vacation 
Employees with 1-12 years earn 12 days per year. 
Em ployees with 13-22 years earn 17 days per year. 
Em ployees with more than 22 years earn 22 days per year 

Sick leave 
Employees with 1-3 years earn 12 days per year. 
Em ployees with 3-10 years earn 18 days per year. 
Employees with more than 10 years earn 24 days per year 

Vacation leave m ust be used in the year earn ed. Upon resignation or retirement, em ployees may, at the 
discretion of the Clerk, be paid for unused sick leave at the em ployee's current rate of pay. Sick leave 
may be accumulated to a maxim um of 60 days and carried over to succeeding years . 

St. Jam es Parish Hospita l's em ployees earn vacation days and sick days at varying rates depending on 
years of serv ice. Em ployees m ay accum ulate vacation days and be paid if they leave before they 
exhaust this accumulation. Em ployees may accum ulate sick leave but are not paid for accumulated sick 
leave. 

8. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and propdetary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term  debt and other long-term  obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmenta l 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest m ethod. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond prem ium or discount. 
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of th e related debt. 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued) 

8. Long-term Obligations (Continued) 

In the fund financial statements, govern mental fund types recognize bond pre miums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during 1he current pedod. The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. Prem iums received on debt issuances are  reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

9. Fund Equity 

In the fund financial statem ents, govern mental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that 
are not available for appropriation or are legally restdcta d by outside parties for use for a specific 

purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to 
change. 

In the government-wide financial statements net assets re present the differe nce between assets and 
liabilities. Net assets invested in capital ass ets, net of re lated debt, consists of capital assets, nat of 
accum ulated depre ciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any debt proceeds used for the 
acquisition, construction, or im provements of those assets . Net assets are reported as restricted when 
there are limita tions im posed on their use by external parties such as creditors, grantors, laws or 
regulations of other governments. W hen both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, 
it is the Parish Council's policy to use re stricted re source s first, then unrestricted re sources as they are 
needed. 

The Parish Council issued general obligation debt to finance  the constru ction of the youth detention 
center facility. The debt ($6,115,000 as of December 31,2003) is being repaid by St. James Padsh's 
general fund instead of the St. James Youth Center (enterprise fund). On the Statement of Net Assets, 
the governmental activities report the debt. and the business-type activities report the capital asset. The 
debt is not considered "capital related" debt for net assets relating to governmental activities. However, 
for the total primary govern ment the debt is considered to be related to capital assets. Consequently, 
total primary govern ment unrestricted nat assets and net assets invested in capital assets, net of related 
debt. are not the same as the combining of the net asset components of the govern mental activities and 
the business-type activities of the pdmary govern ment. 

Net Assets 
Investment in capital assets, 

net of re lated debt 

Unrestricted 

Governmental Business-Type Reconciling 
Activities Activities Debt Total 

$39,074,783 $13,362,147 $(6,115,000) $46,321,930 

(2,693,261 ) ~ 716,324 6,115,000 4,138,063 
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I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

E ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued) 

10. Sales and Use Tax 

On April 4, 1981, the voters of St. James Parish approved a one pement sales and use tax, wh!ch is 
collected by the St. Jam es Parish School Board, and then rem itted to the Parish Council. The proceeds 
of the tax, after paying reasonable and necessary costs and expenses of collecting and adm inistering the 
tax, are dedicated as follows: 

1. One-fourth is to provide care  and assistance to the elderly of the Parish 
and pro vide health services to Parish re sidents, including the acquisition, 
operation, and maintenance of necessary vehicles; 

2. One-fourth is to provide solid waste m anagement and disposal including 
the acquisition of land, plants, buildings, machinery , and necessary 
equipment; 

3. One-fourth is to pay the cost of providing recreational facilities, including 
the acquisition of land, buildings, m achinery, and equipment; and 

4. One-fourth is to pay the genera l operation and maintenance costs of the 
Parish, to acquire capital im provements for the Parish, and to service 
bonds from tim e to time for the purpose of making capital impro vements 
for the purposes listed above. 

11. Estim ates 

The pre paration of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles genera lly accepted in the 
United States of America re quire management to make estim ates and assum ptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure  of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the re ported amounts of revenues, expenditure s, and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

II. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 

Beginning January 1, 2003, the Parish Council im plemented GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statem ent-and M anagem ent's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governm ents. GASB 
Statement No. 34 creates new basic financial statements for reporting on the Parish Council's financial 
activities. The financial statem ents now include govern m ent-wide financial statements prepared on the 

accrual basis of accounting, and fund financial statements which present information for individual major 
funds rather than by fund type which has been the mode of presentation in previously issued financial 
statements. Nonmajor funds are presented in total in one column in the fund financial statements. 

In addition, the Parish Council changed its capitalization and depreciation of capital assets policy 
effective January 1, 2003 in order to be co nsistent with the recom mended guidelines by the State of 
Louisiana for ca pitalization of the ca pital assets. The effect of this change on opera tions for the current 
year was im practicable to determine. 
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II. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION 
(Continued) 

The effect of these changes caused the opening fund balance at January 1, 2003, to be restated in 
terms of Net Assets as follows: 

Total Fund Balances - Govem mental Funds at January 1, 2003 

Long-term assets at January 1, 2003: 
Add: Accounts receivable 
Add: Other assets 

Capita~ assets at January 1, 2003: 
Add: Cost of capital assets added at January 1, 2003 
Less: Cost of capital assets deleted at January 1, 2003 
Less: Accum ulated depreciation at January 1, 2003 

Long-term  liabilities at January 1, 2003: 
Compensated absences at January 1, 2003 
Bond debt and capital leases at January 1, 2003 

Internal Service  fund balance at January 1, 2003 
Net assets at January 1, 2003 

$20,971,431 

1,039,658 
129,709 1,169,367 

81,728,569 

(1,737,665) 
~40.752.60~ 39,238,298 

(497,344) 
(8.351.598) (8,848,942) 

515.767 

The im plem entation of GASB Statement No. 34 ca used the opening fund balance  at June 30, 2002, 
to be restated in term s of Net Assets as follows: 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds at June 30. 2002 

Add: Cost of capital ass ets at June 30, 2002 
Less: Accumulated depreciation at June 30, 2002 

Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2002: 
Com pensated absences payable 

Net assets at June 30. 2002 

II. STEW ARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

$311,279 

59,536 

(54,340) 5,196 

(56,485~ 

$259 99O 

The proposed budget for the year ended December 31, 2003, was com pleted and made available for 
public inspection at the Parish Council Office on Novem ber 6, 2002. A public hearing was held on 
Decem ber 4, 2002, for suggestions and com m ents fro m taxpayers. The proposed budget was form ally 
adopted by the Parish Council on December 4, 2002. The 2003 budget, which included proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them for the general, special revenue, debt serv ice  and capital 

projects funds, was published in the official journal twenty-one (21) days prior to the public headng. 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

IlL STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (Continued) 

All appropriations lapse at year-end, and any encum brances outstanding at year-end are included in the 
next year's budget with funds appropriated in that year to finance them . The budget is prepared on a 
modified accrual basis. Formal budgetary accounts are integrated into the accounting system during the 
year as a management control device. 

The Parish Council exercises budgetary control at the functional level. W ithin functions, the Director of 
Finance has the authority to m ake am endm ents as nece ssary. W hen actual revenues within a fund are 
failing to meet estimated annual budgeted revenues by five percent or more, a budget amendment to 
reflect such changes is adopted by the Parish Council in an open m eeting. Budget am ounts included in 
the accom panying financial statem ents include the original adopted budget amounts and all subsequent 
amendments. 

B. EXCESS O F EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIO NS 

For the year ended Dece mber 31, 2003, expenditures exceeded appro priations in the following individual 
funds: 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds: 
Solid W aste Disposal 
Gramercy Recreation District 
Libra ry 
Consolidated Road Lighting District #3A 
Elderly & Emergency Medical Service s 
Public Safety 
C-2 Home Delivered Meals 
C-1 Congregate Meals 
Senior Center 
Cash-in-Lieu of Commodities 
W eatherization 
Comm unity Serv ices Block Grant 
Energy Assistance 
Senior Citizens Activities 
Head Start Progra m 
Head Start Activity 
Housing Development 

Total Special Revenue Funds 
Debt Service Funds: 
Consolidated General Obligation Bonds 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Library Co nstruction 

Intem al Serv ice Fund: 
Group Hospitalization Claims Clearing 

Total 

Budget 

$5,999,800 

1,401,800 
117,900 

1,880,503 
213,700 

2,045,200 
1,180,520 
49,800 
37,400 
15,700 
38,800 
17,900 
91,200 
44,800 
48,300 

1,636,250 
14,500 
1,400 

8.835.673 

1,092,500 

1.233.000 

Actual 
Unfavorable 
Variance 

1,438,000 
120,914 

1,882,053 
218,089 

2,047,653 
1,202,966 

53,851 
40,267 
17,604 
50,171 
18,008 
107,397 
47,056 
50,727 

1,727,659 
15,017 
1,997 

9.039.429 

36,200 
3,014 
1,550 
4,389 
2,453 
22,446 
4,051 
2,867 
1,904 
11,371 

108 
16,197 
2,256 
2,427 
91,409 

517 
597 

203,756 

1,098,726 6.226 

1,254,412 21,412 

1.879.300 1.956.189 76.889 
$19.040.273 ~  $47~ RS0 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

IlL STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued) 

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS (Continued) 

In the future, the individual fund budgets will be amended whenever actual expenditures plus projected 
expenditures for the remainder of the year exceed budgeted amounts. 

C, LEVIED TAXES 

The following is a sum mary of levied property taxes for the year 2003 

Padshwide taxes: 
General Fund 
Library 
Department of Human Resources 
Courthouse Jail and Public Buildings Maintenance 
Road and Bridge Maintenance 
Parishwide Drainage 
Public Safety 
Enhanced 911 System Maintenance 
Consolidated General Obligation Bonds 
St. Jam es Youth Center 

Special district taxes: 
Consolidated Road Lighting District #3A 
Gra m ercy Recreation District 
Fire Protection District #2 
District V Recre ation 

Discrete com ponent unit: 
St. Jam es Parish Hospital 

The following are the principal taxpayers of the Parish 

T~xeave 
Motiva Enterprises. LLC 
Chevron U.S.A. Inc. 
Occidental Chem ical Corporation 
Kaiser Alum inum & Chemical Company 

IMC-Phosphata Company (Agdco) 
IMC-Phosphate Company (Freeport) 
LoCap, Inc. 
Entergy Louisiana, Inc. 
Capline System 
Zen-Noh Grain Corporation 

Total 

Type of 
Business 
Oil 
Chem ical 
Chem ical 
Chem ical 
Chem ical 
Chem ical 
Public Service 
Public Service 
Public Service 
Grain 

2003 
Assessed 
Valuation 

$ 49,203,9O3 
27,162,884 
13,967,695 
11,738,726 
11,454,323 
10,688,192 
7,582,810 
7,139,320 
6,630,300 
6.576.376 

~152 144 529 

M illaae Rate 
3.23 
3.00 
3.92 
5.00 
5.00 
3.00 
3.94 
1.25 
5.25 
1.00 

1.25 
4.61 

.74 
1.00 

4.75 

Percentage of 
Total Assessed 

Valuation 
18.55% 
10.24% 
5.27% 
4.43% 
4.32% 
4.03% 
2.86% 
2.69% 
2.50% 
2.48% 
57 .37%  



 

ST, JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

At December 31, 2003, the Parish Council has deposits and certificates of deposit (book balances) as 
follows: 

Prim ary St. James St. Jam es Parish 
Government Parish Hosoital Clerk of Court 

Cash 
Certificates of deposit less than 90 days 

Restdcted Assets 
Cash 
Certifica tes of deposit greater than 90 days 

Certificates of deposit greater than 90 days 

$1,373,943 
6.265.358 
7,639,301 

819,408 
250.000 

$1,023,454 $ 450,952 

1,023,454 450,952 

779,390 
$1.230.3,42 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the 
resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities 
owned by the fiscal agent bank. The m arket value of the pledged securities plus the federa l deposit 
insura nce  m ust at all tim es equal the amount on deposit with the fisca l agent. These securities are held 
in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable 
to both parties. 

At December 31, 2003, the primary government has $8,849,307 in deposits (collected bank balances). 
These deposits are secured from risk by $500,000 of federal deposit insurance and $8,349,307 of 
pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). 
At June 30, 2003, the St. James Parish Clerk of Court has $1,286,356 in deposits (collected bank 
balances). These deposits are secured from dsk by $400,000 of federal deposit insurance and 
$886,356 of pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB 
Category 3). Included in the $1,286,356 of St. James Parish Clerk of Court's deposits are $900,266 of 
fiduciary funds due to litigants and others which are not required to be reported by St. James Parish 
Council in the basic financial statements. At March 31, 2003, the St. James Padsh Hospital has 

$1,075,457 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are secured from risk by $300,000 of 
federal deposit insurance and $775,457 of pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of 
the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). 

Even though the pledged securities are considered unco llateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of 
GASB Statem ent 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 im poses a statutory requirement on the 
custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by th e Parish 
Council that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

The Parish Council has investment securities in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP), a 
local governm ent investment pool. In accordance  with GASB Codification Section 150.126 the 
investment in LAM P as of December 31, 2003, is not categodzed in the three risk categories provided 
by GASB Codification Section 159.125 because the investm ent is in the pool of funds and therefore not 
evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form . 
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ST. JAM ES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

The dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of LAM P assets is restricted to not m ore than 90 days 
and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. LAMP is designed to be highly 
liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account balances. The investments in LA MP are 
stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by 
LA MP and the value of the position in the extern al investment pool is the same as the value of the pool 
shares. 

LA MP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LA MP 
is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. LA M P operates in acco rdance with state 
laws and regulations. 

Investments in LA M P at Decem ber 31, 2003, are as follows: 

Investment securities 
Restricted assets 

Other St. James Padsh St. James Total 

General Road and Bridge Public Nonmajor Gas and Water Youth Primary 
Fund Maintenance Safety Funds Distribution System Center Govern ment 

$187,217 $141,215 $528,033 $2,536,100 $ 
341.553 

$2,795 $3,395,360 
341.553 

St. James Parish Hospital has investm ents in securities whose use is lim ited under agreem ents with 
third party payors for funded depreciation. The sum mary of these investm ents as of March 31, 2003, is 
as follows: 

Certificate of deposit maturing in June 2004 
with interest rate of 1.4% 

Certificate of deposit maturing in March 2004 
with intere st rate of 1.29% 

$ 395,606 

523,266 

US Govern ment Securities - Agencies 
FHLB - $1,090,000 face  value - 
4.50% - 8.13% coupons, maturing 05114103-02110115, callable. 1,091,374 
FFCB - $103,450 face value - 6.84% 
maturing March 2012 and January 2010, callable. 
FHLMC - $1,249,874 face value - 5% - 8% coupons, 
m aturing 4/16/04 - 12/12/16, callable. 

Cash Management Account - Paine W ebber Government 
Securities Fund 

Accrued interest 

104.719 

1,252,038 

510,295 

22.676 
$3.899.974 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

A. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

The Hospital's certificates of deposit in excess of insured deposit lim its were collateralized by U.S. 
Govern ment securities and other Agency obligations. U.S. Govern ment securities are carried at fair 
value with accrued interest. 

B. RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of year end for the primary govemment's individual major funds and nonmajor and 
internal service funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowance s for uncollectible acco unts, 
are as follows: 

Taxes 
Property 
Sales 

Other government agencies 
Federal 
State 

Accounts 
Interest 
Other 
Gross Receivables 
Less: allowance for 

uncollectlbles 
Net total receivables 

5,156 
102,437 

113.654 
2,618,806 

Road and Bddge Public 
Maintenance Safe~ 

$1,136,485 

70.556 

13.095 
1,220,086 

St, James Parish 
Other Gas and W ater St. James 

Nonmajor Distribution Youth 
Funds System Center Total 

$ 895.545 $4,572,525 
382,343 

71,529 
19,732 
102,028 

68.739 
895,545 5.216,896 

365,177 
1,322 

366,499 

~28.944~ 

Receivables for the com ponent units at their respective year ends are as follows: 

Taxes 
Contractual settlem ents 
Other government agencies 
Accounts 
Interest 
Other 
Gross receivables 
Less: allowance for uncollectibles 
Net total receivables 
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St. James 
Parish Hoscital 

$ 279,160 
131.483 

1,558,566 

$227,297 $8,965,349 
646,405 

76,685 
192,675 
607,410 
1,322 

200,910 
10,690.756 

- f28.944~ 

s~72,2~  

St. James 
Clerk of Court 

4,710 
15,121 
1,300 

21,131 



ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

C. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2003, was as follows: 

Prim ary Governm ent 

Governm ental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 

Capita l assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Library collection 
Infrastructure 
Total ca pita l assets being depreciated 

Less  accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Library collection 
Infrastru cture 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Beginning 
Balance 

(as restated'l 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 1,829,767 $ $ $1,829,767 
862.697 2.559.250 (666.477/ 2.755.470 

2.692.464 2.559.250 (666.477) 4.585.237 

9,012,099 
1,183,391 
8,427,275 
1,382,629 

55,991.289 
75,996,674 

(3,538,981) 
(727,892) 

(5,558,217) 
(829,572) 

(28,796,179) 
(39,450,841) 

Tota l capital assets, being depreciated, net 36.545.833 

Governmental activities capital assets, net ~;3.q 2~R 297 

Business-type act ivities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Construction in progress 

Capitet assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 
Gas distribution system 
W ater distdbution system 
Office furniture, fixtures, and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Total capital assets, being depreciated 

71,076 
5,000 

1,486,938 
52,967 
450.232 

2,066,213 

(209A35) 
(41,049) 
(631,672) 
(276,524) 

(1,424,319) 
(2,582,999} 

(607,434) 
(36.682) 

(644,116) 

9,083,175 
1,188,391 
9,306,779 
1,398,905 
56,441,521 
77,418,771 

(3,748,418) 
(768,941) 

557,433 (5,632,456) 
36,682 (1,069,414) 

(30.220.498) 
594,115 (41,439,725) 

8,587,968 
1,982,057 
13,554,948 
652,001 
298.253 

25,075,227 

9,470 
869,019 
57,609 
23.140 
959,238 

(13,207) 
(14,672) 

t23.739~ 

(51,618) 

8,587,968 
1,978,320 
14,409,295 
709,610 
297,654 

25,982,847 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Business-type activities (continued): 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 
But~dir'Os 
Gas distribution system 
W ater distribution system 
Office furniture, fixtures, and equipment 
Transportation equipment 
Total accum ulated depreciation 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Business-type activities capital assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance 

(as restated) 

(3,256,665) 
(1,240,420) 
(5,713,580) 
(541,566) 
(228.563~ 

(10.980.794~ 

(188,709) 
(39,601) 
(296,178) 
(36,357) 
(24,750) 
(585.595) 

12,942 
13,177 

23,739 
49,856 

Ending 
Balance 

(3,445,374) 
(1.257,079) 
(5,996,581) 
(577,923) 
(229.574~ 

(11,516,531) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/program s of the primary govern ment as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highway and streets, including depreciation of general infrastructure assets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development and assistance 
Total depreciation expense-governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Gas and water 
Youth detent/on 
Total depreciation 

Construction Com m itm ents 

activities 

$ 217,766 
261,290 

1,583,642 
29,270 
83,152 
13,650 
379,654 
14,575 

$ 371,293 
214.302 

The government has an active construction project at December 31, 2003, for park lighting. At year 
end the Parish Council's com m itment with the contra ctor is as follows: 

Remaining 
Com mitment 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

C. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Discretely Presented Com ponent Units 

Activity for St. James Parish Hospital for the year ended March 31, 2003, was as follows: 

Beginning 
Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 52,159 $147,314 $ 
Conskuctfon in progress 308.098 66.308 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated  360.257 213.622 

Capital ass ets, be ing depreciated : 
Building and improvements 
Equipment 

Total capital ass ets being depreciated 

Less accum ulated depreciation fot~ 

Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 

3,286,734 75,927 
4.167.227 936.512 (181.432) 

7,463,961 1,012,439 (181,432) 

(2,100,274) (112,547) 
(3.192.711~ ~  180,503 
(5.292.985~ (362.442~ 180.503 

$ 3,170 
(374,406) 
(371,236) 

371,236 

371,236 

End ing 
Balance 

$ 202,643 

3,733,897 

4.922,307 

8,656,204 

(2,212,821) 
(3,262,103) 
(5.474.924~ 

Total capital assets, be ing depreciated, net 2.160.976 649.997 (929) 371.236 3,181,280 

Business-type activities capital ass ets, net $2.=5~  ~ 3 $ S63.619 $ ~929
. ) $ S.'~ 3s3 92.'~ 

Depreciation expense of $362,442 was charged to operating expenses 

Activity for St. James Parish Clerk of Court for the year ended June 30, 2003, was as follows 

Capital asset being depreciated: 
Equipment, furn iture and fixtures 
Autom obile 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less: accum ulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 

Beginning 
Balance 

$32,236 
27,300 

59,536 

54,34Q 

S; 5.196 

Ending 
Increases Decreases Balance 

$ $ $32,236 
27.300 

59,536 

56.094 

Depreciation expense of $1,754 was charged to general government function 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

D. INTERFUND RECEIVA BLES, PAYABLES, AND TRA NSFERS 

The composition of interfund balances as of Decem ber 31, 2003, is as follows: 

Governm ental Funds: 
General 
Road and Bridge Maintenance 
Public Safety 
Parishwide Road Im provem ent 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

Proprietary Funds: 
St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distdbution System 
St. James Youth Center 

Differences due to different year ends 

Receivable 

$ 18,411 

50,000 
303,849 
239.561 
611.821 

600 
600 

Payable 

35,000 
303,849 

157.026 

21,436 
$612.42"1 

Due to/from other funds are the result of transfers between funds or collections made on behalf of one 
fund for another which are expected to be paid within one year. 

Govern mental Funds: 
Public Safety 

Proprietary Funds: 
St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System 

Differences due to different year ends 

Receivable 

$281,977 

Pavable 

$ 

306,977 

(25,00~ 
$281.97"/" 

The Public Safety Special Revenue fund advance d funds to the St. Jam es Parish Gas and W ater 
Distdbution System to construct a 2,000,000 gallon a day clarifier. These funds are repayable on an 
installment basis through 2010. 

Governmental Funds: 
General 
Road and Bridge Maintenance 
Public Safety 
Pedshwide Road Im provement 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

$1,354,239 
1,052,149 
277,583 
103,000 

1.617.918 
4.404.889 

Trans~ ra In 

$ 4,624 

20,000 
960,420 

3.344.145 
4.329.189 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

D. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued) 

Transfers Out 
Proprietary Funds: 

St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distribution System 
St. James Youth Center 

Differences due to different year end 

Interfund transfers are m ade on a regular basis to supplement other funds sources and to pro vide 
internal financing for capital outlay such as library construction and road construction. 

E. LEASES 

Operating Leases 

The Parish Council has several operating leases as of Decem ber 31, 2003. The m inim um annual 
com m itments under non-cancelable opera ting leases and/or agreem ents are as follows: 

Year Endino 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009-2013 
Total 

The St. James Parish Hospita l entered into a co opera tive endeavor agreem ent with Louisiana Health 
Care Group to provide hom e health services as St. Jam es Home Care. As part of this agreem ent the 
Hospita l leased certain prem ises to St. James Home Care. Total revenue recognized and subsequently 
received by the Hospital under the cooperative endeavor agreement amounted to $217,597 for the year 
ended March 31, 2003. Total re nt received by the Hospital under this re ntal arrangem ent amounted to 
$3,000 for the year ended March 31, 2003. All these amounts are reflected in other operating revenues. 

The St. James Parish Hospital entered into a lease agreement with St. Jam es Psychiatric Hospital, Inc. 
to lease certain premises within the Hospital on June 18, 2001. The primary term of the lease was for a 
one year pedod ending June 17, 2002, with an option to re new for five additional one-year terms. The 
Hospital received $197,940 in rents related to this agreement for the year ended March 31, 2003. This 
amount is reflected in cther opera ting revenues. 

The Parish Council has entered into certain lease agreements for fire fighting equipment. These lease 
agre ements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the 
present value of their future minim um lease payments as of the inception date. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

E. LEASES (Continued) 

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

Asset: 
Machinery and equipm ent 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Total 

Governmental 
Activities 

$678,910 
(234.33~ 
$444 573 

The future m inimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minim um lease payments as 
of Decem ber 31, 2003, were as follows: 

Governmental 
Year Endina 
20O4 
2005 
2006 
2007 
Total minim um lease paym ents 
Less: amount representing interest 
Present value of minim um lease payments 

F. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Activities 
$ 78,971 
51,215 
51,215 
51.215 
232,616 
(26.719) 

~2N5 R~7 

The Parish Council issues general obligation and public improvement bonds to provide funds for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. These bonds have been issued for governmental 
activities. The original amount of general obligation and public im pro vement bonds issued in pdor years 
was $12,216,000. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of 
the government. General obligation and public improvement bonds currently outstanding are as 
follows: 

Purpose 
Governmenta l activities 

Interest Rates 
4.35- 5.2% 

Am ount 
$7~174.000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation and public improvement bonds are 
as follows: 

Governm ental Activities 
Principal 

$ 778,000 
827,000 
661,000 
695,000 
738,000 

3.475.000 
$7.174.000 

Intere~ 

$ 331,741 
295,278 
260,675 
228,222 
193,188 
453.625 

~1.762.72g 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

F. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

The Parish Council also issues certificates of indebtedness to provide funds for the purpose of 
purchasing capital assets. In prior years the original amount of certificates of indebtedness was 
$275,000. The interest rate of the prior issuance of certifica tes of indebtedness is 5.25% on $235,000 
and 6% on $40,000. The outstanding balance on the prior iss ue of certificates of indebtedness at 
December 31, 2003, is $120,000. During the year ended December 31, 2003, certificates of 
indebtedness  totaling $500,060 ($425,000 at an interest rate of 2.49% and $75,000 at a 0% interest 
rate) were issued to purchase ca pital assets. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for certificates of indebtedness are as follows: 

Year Ending 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Govern mental Activities 
Pnncipal 
$155,000 
157,000 
100,000 
103,000 
105.000 

$620.000 

Interest 
$13,682 
8,935 
5,490 
4,432 
1.121 

$33.660 

St. James Parish Gas and Water Distribution System (Distribution System) issued bonds where the 
Distribution System pledged income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt 
service. The original amount of revenue bonds issued in prior years totaled $3,900,000. Revenue 
bonds outstanding at year end are as follows: 

Puroose 
Gas and water distribution 

Interest Rates 
6.0 - 7.5% 

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 

Year Ending 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Governing Authority: Parish of St. James 
Property taxes: 

Assessed valuation, 2003 tax rolls 

Principal 
$315,000 
105,000 
115,000 
125,000 
140,000 
$8oo oo
_ _ ~ _

o  

Debt limit: 10% of assessed valuation (for any one purpose) 
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Amount 
$800 000 

Interest 
$46,537 
32,438 
24,187 
15,188 
5,250 

$123.60_
0 

$ 26,522,763 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continuedl 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

F. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

(con6nued) 

At December 31, 2003, the Padsh Council has no outstanding bonds that exceed the legal debt limit. 

In fiscal year ending June 30, 1998, the Distribution System defeased $835,263 of the 1989 Series 
Refunding Bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds with an escrow agent to provide for all future 
debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the 
defeased bonds are not included in the System 's financial statements . As of June 30, 2003, th e 
outstanding principal balance of the defeased revenue bonds is $575,763. 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2003, was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Bonds payable: 
General obligation bonds 
Public im provement bonds 

Total bonds payable 
Certificates of indebtedness 
Capital leases 
Compensated absences 
Governmental activity 
long-term liabilities 

Business-type activities: 
Bonds payable: 
Revenue bonds 
Less deferred amount 
on refunding 
Total bonds payable 

Compensated absences 
Business-type activity 
long-term liabilities 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

$7,650,000 
257.000 

7,907,000 
175,000 
269,598 
497.344 

500,000 

$(695,000) 
(38,o0o) 
(733,000) 
(55,000) 
(63,701) 
(8.417) 

$6,955,000 
219,000 

7,174,000 
620,000 
205,897 
488.927 

Due 
W ithin 

One Year 

$ 740,000 
38.000 
778,000 
155,000 
67,620 
306.885 

$1,095,000 $ $(295,000) $ 800,000 $ 315,000 

(48.9361 
1,046,064 
216.408 

13.010 

(281,990) 
(35.926~ 
764,074 
242,938 

(11.701) 
303,299 
217.672 

The government-wide statement of net assets includes $303,299 of the long-term liabilities due within 
one year for business-type activities in "liabilities payable from restricted assets." The remaining 
amount of $217,672 is displayed as "noncurrent liabilities, due within one year" on that statement. 

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the fund from which the em ployee's salary is paid 
im mediately prior to the date of retirem ent or term ination. 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

F. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

Long-term liability activity for St. James Parish Hospital for the year ended March 31, 2003 was as 
follows: 

Due 
Beginning Ending W ithin 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Installm ent obligation incurred 
to purchase nuclear equipment 
requiring monthly payments 
including interest of $2,565 
through September 2002 $15,099 $ $(15,099) $ - $ 

Installment obligation incurred 
to purchase mammogram 
equipment requiring monthly 
paym ents including interest of 
$1,152 through August 2002 4,542 

Installment obligation incurred 
to purchase CT equipment 
requiring monthly payments, 
including interest at 4.85% , 
of $9,957 through May 2008 529.549 

$529.549 

(4,542) 

The following table reflects the m aturity schedule of these obligations. 

Princioal 
$ 79,603 
99,864 
104,813 
110,011 
115,467 
19.791 

$529.549 

529.549 79.603 
$~2g ~4~  s7~.603 

intere~ 
$19,966 
19,622 
14,670 
9,472 
4,016 
120 

~ 7.8R6 

Long-term debt for the Clerk of Court consists of com pensated absences payable. The following is a 
sum mary of the long-term  debt transactions during the year: 

Long-term debtpayable atJune 30,2002 
Additions 
Reductions 

Long-term debtpayable atJune 30,2003 
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$56,485 
5.786 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued) 

F. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued) 

(Continued): 

The increase in long-term debt represents accumulated sick leave that is fully vested as approved by 
the St. James Clerk of Court for the year ended June 30, 2003. 

The Industrial Distdct of St. James Parish has issued Pollution Control Revenue Bonds or Industrial 
Revenue Bonds. Obligations of the industrial districts are payable solely fro m the income and revenues 
derived from the industrial districts. These bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of th e full faith and 
credit of the Parish and accordingly have not been reported in the accom panying financial statem ents. 

As of Decem ber 31, 2003, there were six series of Pollution Control Revenue Bonds or Industrial 
Revenue Bonds outstanding. The aggregate pdncipal amount payable for th e sedes issued after 
January 1, 1996, could not be determined; however, the original issue amounts totaled $299.4 million. 

G. RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted assets for debt retirement and customer deposits of $268,993 of the St. James Parish Gas 
and Water Distribution System fund as of June 30, 2003, (the component unit's fiscal year end) consist 
of the following: 

Money market accounts 
Certificates of deposit 
LAMP 
Total 

$ 819,408 
250,000 
341.553 

~1 410 961 

St. Jam es Parish Hospital has assets whose use is limited under agre ements with third party payors for 
funded depreciation in the amount of $3,899,974. (See note IV A) 

V. OTHER INFORMATION 

A. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Parish Council is exposed to various risks of loss re lated to torts; theft of, damage to, and 

destruction of assets; errors and omiss ions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the 
Parish Council carries commercial insurance including: general and auto liability, errors and omissions, 
professional liability, law enforcement liability, workers co mpensation, and various property policies. 

The Parish Council is exposed to various risks of loss related to em ployee health and m edical claims for 
the em ployees of the Padsh Council. The Parish Council established a Group Hospitalization Claims 

Clearing Fund (an internal service fund) to account for and finance  its uninsured dsks of loss. Under 
th e program , the Group Hospitalization Claims Clearing Fund provides co verage for up to a maximum 
of $65,000 for each employee's health claims. The Parish Council purchases insurance for claims in 
excess of coverage provided by the Fund. Settlements have not exceeded coverage for each of the 
past three fiscal years. 
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ST. JAMES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

A. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

All funds of the Parish Council participate in the program and make paym ents to the Group 
Hospitalization Claims Clearing Fund based on estim ates of the amounts needed to pay prior and 
current year claims and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. That reserve was $478,123 at 
December 31, 2003, and is reported as a designation in the net assets of the Group Hospitalization 
Claims Clearing Fund. The claims liability of $340,000 reported in the Fund at December 31, 2003, is 
based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statem ent No. 10, which 
requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial 
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial 
statem ents and the am ount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The result of the process to 
estimate the claims liability is not an exact amount as it depends on many com plex fact ors, such as 
inflation, changes in legal doct rines, and damage awards. Accordingly, claim s are re evaluated 

periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and 
amount of pay-outs), and other economic and social factors. The estimate of the claims liability also 
includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific claims and other 
claim adjustment expenses regardless of whether allocated to specific claims. Changes in the Fund's 
claims liabilities during the past two years are as follows: 

Unpaid claims, beginning of year 
Incurred claims 
Claim payments 
Unpaid claims, end of year 

Year Ended 
12/31/03 

$ 275,000 
1,582,092 
(1.517.092) 
~; ~ 0 00
.~ 0 

Year Ended 
12/31/02 

$ 235,000 
1,785,559 
(1.745.559"J 
275 0(30 

The St. Jam es Parish Hospital is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, 

and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The 
Hospital is a mem ber of two separate trust funds established by the Louisiana Hospital Association th at 

encompasses self insurance of (1) hospital professional liability and comprehensive general liability, and 
(2) statutory workers compensation. The Hospital carries commercial insurance for all other risks of 
loss. The trust funds for professional liability/com pre hensive genera l liability and statutory workers 
com pensation are pooling arrangements whereby there is a sharing of risks among the participants of 
the trust funds. The Hospital reports its prem iums as insurance expenditures and expenses these 
prem iums over the pro rata periods involved. 

The St. James Parish Clerk of Court is exposed to risks of loss in the area of auto liability, 
professional liability and workers' compensation. All of these risks are handled by purchasing 
co mmercial insurance coverage. There have been no significant reductions in the insurance 
co verage during the year. 
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ST, JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

B. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On January 1, 2004, the Parish Council issued $6,450,000 of general obligation refunding bonds for 
the purpose of refunding $5,640,000 of the Parish Council's outstanding General Obligation Bonds, 
Series 1993, maturing April 1, 2005 to April 1, 2013, inclusive, and $575,000 of the Parish Council's 
outstanding Genera l Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1994, maturing March 1, 2005 to March 1, 
2008, inclusive. The interest rate on the bonds is 3.0 percent and the m aturity date is April 1, 2013. 

The Parish Council is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcom e of these lawsuits is not 
presently determ inable, in the opinion of legal counsel the resolution of these matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Parish Council. 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that 
m ay be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determ ined at this time although the Parish Council 
expects such amounts, if any, to be im m aterial. 

D. POSTEMPLOYM ENT BENEFITS 

The Parish Council does not provide health care benefits to em ployees who retired prior to July 1, 1982. 
Employees who retired after July 1, 1982, but prior to July 1, 1991, and their dependents are eligible for 
health care benefits. Em ployees who retire on or after July 1, 1991, and their dependents shall be 
eligible for health care benefits provided the following conditions are met: 

1. a. The employee and his eligible dependents m ust have been continuously co vered 
under the Parish Council's health plan for at least twelve (12) months prior to 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

E. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS 

Substantially all em ployees of the Parish Council are m em bers of the Parochial Em ployees 

Retirement System d Louisiana (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan adm inistered by a separate board of trustees. The System is com posed of two distinct plans, 
Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All em ployees of the Parish Council 
are mem bers of Plan A. All full-tim e, perm anent em ployees working at least 28 hours per week who 
are paid wholly or in part from Parish funds and all elected Parish officials are eligible to participate in 
the System . Per Louisiana Revised Statute 11:164, Parish councilmen elected on or after January 1, 
1997, are not eligible to participate in the System . Under Plan A, em ployees who retire at or after age 
60 with at least 10 years of creditable service, at or after age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable 
serv ice, or at any age with at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, 
payable monthly for life, equal to 3% of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service. 
However, for those em ployees who were m em bers of the supplemental plan only prior to January  1, 
1980, the benefit is equal to one percent of final average salary plus $24 for each year of 
supplem ental-plan-only serv ice earned prior to January 1, 1980. Final-average salary is the 

employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest 
average. Em ployees who term inate with at least the amount of creditable serv ice stated above and 
do not withdraw their employee contributions may retire at the ages specified above and re ceive the 
benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. 
Benefits are established by state statute. 

The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System . That report may be obta ined by writing to the Parochial 
Em ployees' Retirement System , Post Office Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898-4619, or by 

calling (225) 928-1361. 

Funding Policy. Under Plan A, m em bers are required by state statute to contribute 9.5 percent of 
their annual covered salary, and the Parish Council is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determ ined rate. The current rate is 7.75 percent of annual covered payro ll. Contributions to the 

System also include one-fourth of one perce nt (except Orleans and East Baton Rouge Parishes) of 
the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each Parish. These tax dollars are divided 
betw een Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active m embers of each plan. 
The contribution requirements of plan m embers and the Parish Council are established and m ay 
be am ended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the em ployer 

contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the 
results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The Parish Council's contributions to the System 
under Plan A for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, were $515,235, $490,789, 
and $467,212, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 



 

ST. JAMES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

E, EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PLANS (Continued) 

The Hospital is a member of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana - Plan B. All 
employees must participate in this plan. The Plan B fund is financed by employee contributions of 3% 
for 2003 and employer contributions as determined by the Public Retire ment Systems' Actuarial 
Com m ittee. The Act uarial comm ittee has determined that the em ployer co ntribution rate for 2003 to be 

3.75% (5.25% for 2004). The actuarial cost method used for Plan B is the aggregate actuarial cost 
method with allocation based on earnings. The normal cost is interest adjusted for midyear payment. 
The ratio of assets to the pension obligation in Plan B was 108% at Decem ber 31, 2002. Total pension 
expense was $67,891, $55,999, and $59,286 for the years ended March 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, 
re spectively. All amounts expensed have been funded to the plan. 

The System issues a publicly available financial report th at includes financial statements and require d 
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Parochial Employees' 
Retirement System, Post Office Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898-4619, or calling (225) 928- 
1361. 

Plan Descriotion. The St. James Parish Clerk of Court contributes to the Clerk of Court Retire ment and 

Relief Fund (Retirement System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
adm inistered by the Clerk of Court Retirem ent and Relief Fund, a public corporation created in 
accordance with the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute 11:1501 - 1540 to provide retirement, 
disability and survivor benefits to m em bers throughout the State of Louisiana. The Clerk of Court 
Retirem ent and Relief Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary inform ation. That report may be obta ined by writing to the Clerk of Court 
Retirement and Relief Fund, 11745 Bricksome Ave., Suite B-l, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70816. 

Fundina Policy. The St. James Padsh Clerk of Court co ntributes 18.25% of em ployees' annual co vered 
payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the St. James Padsh Clerk of Court are 
established and may be amended by the Clerk of Court Retirement and Relief Fund. The St. James 
Parish Clerk of Court's contributions to the Retirement System for the years ended June 30, 2903, 
2002, and 2001, were $67,019, $64,506, and $60,151, respectively. 

F, DEFERRED COMPENSATIO N PLA N 

The Parish Council offers its em ployees a deferred com pensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all Parish Council em ployees, permits them 
to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred com pensation is not available to 
em ployees until term ination, retirement, or unforeseeable emergency. 



 

ST. JAM ES PARISH COUNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued 

V. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued) 

F. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN (Continued) 

Effective January 3, 2000, all permanent, full-time em ployees of the Parish Council are eligible to 
participate in the voluntary matching deferred com pensation program offered by the Parish Council. 
The program provides a yearly matching contribution, based on the em ployee's length of service. The 
maximum yearly matching co ntribution by the Parish Council is $2,000 per employee. The Parish 
Council's contribution to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2003, amounted to $136,589. The 
St. James Parish Gas and W ater Distdbution System's contribution to the plan amounted to $21,089 for 
the year ended June 30, 2003. 

Plan DescriDtion. The St. James Parish Clerk of Court offers its employees participation in the 
Louisiana Public Em ployees Deferred Com pensation Plan adopted by the Louisiana Deferred 
Compensation Com m ission and established in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. 
The plan is reported as an ~gency fund in the State of Louisiana's financial statements. The plan, 
available to a~l the Clerk of Court's employees, permits the employees to defer a portion of their salary 
until future years. The Clerk of Court m atches 100% of em ployee co ntributions. The Clerk of Court's 
contribution to the plan amounted to $34,700 for the year ended June 30, 2003. The deferred 
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or proof of hardship. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all pro perty rights purchased with those amounts, 
and all inco me attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the 
employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the State of Louisiana (without being 
restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan) subject only to the claims of the general creditors 
of the State of Louisiana. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of 
the State of Louisiana in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each 
participant. 

It is the opinion of management, after co nsulting with legal counsel, that the Clerk of Court has no 
liability for losses under the plan. 



REQ UIRED SUPPLEM ENTARY INFO RMATIO N 



M AJO R G OVERNM ENTA L FUNDS 

General Fund 

The general fund is the principal fund of the Parish and is used to account for resources traditionally 
associated  with govern ment which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be 
accounted  for in another fund. 

Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund 

The Road and Bridge Maintenance Fund accounts for the maintenance of existing roads and bridges. Major 
means of financing is provided by property taxes, state revenue sharing, the State of Louisiana Parish 
Tra nsportation Fund, and the Parish Royalty Fund. Use of these funds is restricted  by Louisiana Revised 
Sta tute 43:753. 

Public Safety Fund 

The Public Safety Fund accounts for the payment of expenditures and capital outlays for the six volunteer 
fire departments and the cost of pro viding health se rvice s to the residents of the parish. Financing is 
provided by property taxes. 

Parishw ide Road Im provem ent Fund 

The Parishwide Road Improvement Fund accounts for major parishwide road improvements, including the 
construction of new ro ads and bridges. Construction is on a continuing basis. Financing is pro vided by 
transfers fro m the Road and Bridge Maintenance  Fund. 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual 

For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Property 
Voluntary payments in lieu of taxes 
Sales and use 
Alcoholic beverages (beer) 

Licenses and perm its 
Intargovernmental: 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government: 
Financial edmi~stretion 
Legislative 
Judicial 
Executive 
Elections 
O'ther.unc~assil~ed 

Public safety 
Health and welfare 
Economic development and assistance 
In-kind expenses 

Capital ougay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

1,694,100 $ 
546,000 

1,277,500 
23,200 
349,800 

159,300 
494,000 
80,600 
58,000 

115,600 
4,798,100 

1,325,100 
233,300 
223,700 
400,700 
45,700 
176,100 
443,700 

1,013,100 
344,700 

77,600 
4,285,700 

Final 

1,659,800 
540,000 

1,240,400 
21,600 
369,500 

341,800 
419,300 
97,700 
36,200 

113,200 
4,839,500 

1,380,200 
214,600 
200,100 
402,500 
46,500 
220,300 
493,300 
929,000 
342,000 

30,500 
4,259,000 

$ 1,645,348 
506,327 

1,241,465 
22,608 
375,311 

357,057 
463,028 
100,111 
31,989 
3,568 

116,644 
4,867,656 

1,412.356 
215,050 
208,674 
410,429 
45,522 
213,627 
511.914 

1,026,700 
329.051 
3,568 
8,200 

4,385,091 

Vadance 
Positive 

(NeQafive) 

$ (14,452) 
(31,673) 
1,065 
1,208 
6,811 

15,257 
43,728 
2,411 
(4,211) 
3,568 
6.444 
28.156 

(32,156) 
(450) 

(8,574) 
(7,929) 
978 

6,673 
(18,614) 
(97,700) 
12,949 
(3,668) 
22,300 

(126,091) 

512.400 580,500 482,565 (97,935) 

4,624 

(1,052,300) (1,440.660) (1.354.23g) 
(1,052,300} (1,440,800} (1,349,61~, 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses (539.906) (866,300) (867,05g) 

Fund balance, beginning ofyear 
Fund balance, end ofyear 

4,449.684 
3,909,784 

The n~es to he financial sta~ments am an integral pa~ ~ his statement, 

Schedule 1 
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4,449,664 
$ 3,589,384 

4,624 
86,561 
91,185 

(6,750) 



St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Budget and Actual 
For the year ended December 31,2003 

Fund Balances 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Property 

Intergovem mentah 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Interest 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Highways and streets 

Capital outta~ 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

Final Actual 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ 1,184,700 $ 1,160,500 $ 1,150,561 $ (9,939) 

323,000 
327,600 
1,100 

33,700 
1.000 

1.871.100 

1,508,300 
194,900 

1,703,200 

168,500 
298,700 
1,500 
19,400 
400 

148,541 
298,399 
2,016 
16,663 
1.101 

(19,959) 
(301) 
516 

(2,737) 
701 

1,183,100 
136,000 

1,319,100 

1,078,222 
149,698 

1,227,920 

104,878 

(13,698) 
91.160 

167.900 329,900 389,361 59,461 

(1,065,600) (1,052,460) (1,052,149) 
(1,065,600) (1,052,460) (1,052,149) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses (897,700) (722,560) (662,788) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balanca , end of year 

2,316,037 2,316,037 2,316,037 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Schedule 2 
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311 

59,772 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 
Public Safety Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Budget and Actual 

For the year ended Decem ber 31. 2003 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Property 

Interest 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Public Safety 
Debt Service 
Principal 
Intere st & fiscal charges 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

$ 933,600 
27,600 
961,200 

665,264 

Final 

$ 914,400 
14,000 
928,400 

411.100 

22,500 
5.200 

407,500 
846,300 

$ 906,574 
12,629 
91g,303

,,' 

402,041 

61,806 
17.164 
444,372 
925,383 

Vadance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

$ (7,726) 
(1,371) 
(9,097) 

9.059 

(39,306) 
(11.964) 
(36,872) 
(79,083) 

295,936 82,100 (6,080) (88,180) 

20,000 20,000 20,000 

(345,700) (334,220) (277,583) 
(325,700) (314,220) (257,583) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses (29,764) (232,120) (263,663) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end ofyear 

2,285,319 2,285,319 2,285,319 

The notes tothe financialstatements are anintegrelpart this statement. 

Schedule 3 

56,637 
56.637 

(31,543) 



 

St. James Padsh Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Parishwide Road Improvem ent Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 
For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Intergovernmental: 
Sta te 

Interest 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Highways and streets 
Total expenditure s 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

Final Actual 

69,300 

15.100 
20 

20.108 
100 84.400 20.128 

972,100 
972,100 

988.000 
988.000 

878,088 
878.088 

Variance 
Positive 

(Ne~lative) 

(69,300) 
20 

5,008 

(64,272) 

109,912 
109,912 

(972,000) (903,600) (857,960) 45,640 

972,000 

54O 
54o 

1,006,060 

(103,000) 
903.060 

(540) 

54 O 
---

$- 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

69 

960,420 

(103,000) 
857.420 

(540) 

54 0 
-~-- _-- 

(46,54 0) 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

December 31. 2003 

Spedal 
Revenue 
Funds 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,265,753 
Investments 1,986,161 

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 4,019,997 
Due from other funds 160,326 
Prepaid Items 16,679 
Total assets $ 9,448,916 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 
Deferred revenues 
Interfund payable 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 
Debt service 

Unreserved 
Total fund balance s 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

$ 570,885 
110,117 
16,875 
10,673 
84,437 
792,987 

Debt 
Serv ice  
Funds 

$ 663,095 
245,202 

1,193,311 

Total 
Capital Nonmajor 
Projects Governmental 
Funds Funds 

$401,642 
23,646 

79,235 

$ 4,330,490 
2,255,009 
5,213,308 
239.561 
16,679 

$12,055,047 

$ 45,518 $ 80,249 $ 696,652 
110,117 
16,875 
10,673 
84.437 

2,056,090 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Schedule 5 

7O 

424,274 
424,274 
$504,523 

2,056,090 
9,080,203 
11,136,293 

$12,055,047 



 

St. James Periefi  Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Revenues 
Taxes: 
Property 
Sales and use 

Intergovemmental: 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-Kind Revenues 
Other 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General Govern ment 

Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and weffare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development and assistance  
In-kind expenses 
Debt service 
Principal 
Interest and fisca l charges 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

DeW 
Sawica  
Funds 

$3,422,220 $1,208,129 $ 
2,193,192 

2,394,894 
270,971 
93,010 
223,107 
673,580 
69,287 
423,715 
419,424 

10,183,400 

9,298 

Capital 

Project 
Funds 

$ 4,630,349 
2.193,192 

4,594 

1,512,548 46,816 
997,521 
218,090 

1,379,450 
528,202 

1,806,892 
1,616,202 
1.318,961 
423.715 

2,108,010 
11,909,591 

788,000 
387,027 

29,360 

5,706 

2,394,894 
270,971 
93,010 
223.107 
673,580 
83,179 
423,715 
419,424 

11,405,421 

1,559,364 
997.521 
247,450 

1,379,450 
528,202 

1.806,892 
1,621,908 
1,318,961 
423,715 

788,000 
387.027 

1,248,706 3,356,716 
1,283,772 14,415,206 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,726,191) (4,416) (1,279,178) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Bond proceeds 
Operating transfers out 
Total other financing sources (uses) 

1,926,350 

(1,239,243) 
687.107 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing sources 
over (under) expenditures and other financing uses (1,039,084) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 9,695,013 
Fund balance , end of year $ 8,655,929 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Schedule 6 
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114,867 
500,000 

(305,522~ 
309,345 

1,302,928 

(73,153) 
1,229,775 

304,929 (49,403) 

(3,009,785) 

3,344,145 
50O,0O0 

(1,617,918) 
2,226,227 

(783,558) 
11,919,851 

$11,136,293 



NO NMAJO R SPECIA L REVENUE FUNDS 

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues derived from taxes or other dedicated 
re venue sources. They are usually required by statute, charter provision, or loca l ordinance to finance 
particular functions or activities of government. The parish maintains the following special revenue fu nds: 

Courthouse, Jail and Public Buildings Maintenance Fund 

The Courthouse, Jail and Public Buildings Maintenance  Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of 
the public buildings in the parish. Financing is provided by property taxes and state revenue sharing. 

Parishwide Drainage Maintenance Fund 

The Parishwide Dra inage Maintenance  Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of all padsh 
drainage projects. Major means of financing is provided by property taxes and state revenue shadng. 

Fire Protection District No. 2 Maintenance Fund 

The Fire Protection District No. 2 Maintenance Fund accounts for the opera tion, maintenance and/or 
construction of the water distribution system within the district. Financing is provided by property taxes. 

Solid W aste Disposal Fund 

The Solid W aste Disposal Fund accounts for the operation of solid waste management and disposal. 
Financing is provided by one quarter of one per cent sales tax imposed padshwide and user fees charged to 
the padsh residents. 

Elderly and Em ergency Medical Services Fund 

The Eidedy and Emergency Medica l Services Fund accounts for the cost of providing care and assistance  
to the elderly persons of the padsh and the cost of providing health serv ices to the residents of the parish. 
Financing is provided by one quarter of one per cent sales ta x im posed parishwide and transfers from other 
funds. 

Parks and Recreation Fund 



NO NMAJO R SPECIA L REVENUE FUNDS 
(Continued) 

Consolidated Road Lighting District No. 3A Fund 

The Consolidated Road Lighting District No. 3A Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of street 
lights. Financing is provided by pro perty taxes, volunta ry payments in lieu of taxes, and state revenue 
sharing funds. 

St. Jam es Transit System Fund 

The St. James Tra nsit System Fund accounts for the opera tion and maintenance of the parishwide 
tra nsportation pro gra m . Financing is pro vided by federa l grants, state gra nts, bus fares, and transfers from 
other funds. 

Crim inal Court Fund 

The Crim inal Court Fund acco unts for the expenditures attributa ble to th e Twenty-Third Judicial District 
Court. Financing is pro vided by fines and forfeitures imposed by the distdct courts. The district is 
co m pdsed of the parishes of St. Jam es, Ascension, and Assum ption. Only St. James Parish is reported in 
these statem ents. 

Enhanced 911 System M aintenance Fund 

The Enhanced 911 System Maintenance Fund acco unts for the operation and maintenance of an enhanced 
911 emergency telephone system . Financing is provided by property taxes and emergency  telephone 
service charges. 

Title III-C-2 Hom e Delivered Meals Fund 

The Title III-C-2 Home Delivered Meals Fund accounts for the expenditures in delivering the meals to those 
citizens who are unable to attend any one of the senior citizens' centers. Funding is provided by the United 
States Department of Health and Human Services and is passed through the Govern or's Office of Elderly 
Affairs and from co ntributions rece ived on th e meals. 

Title III-C-1 Congregate M eals Fund 

The Tdle III-C-1 Congregate Meals Fund represents cost associated with feeding the elderly citizens at the 
four senior citizens' centers located thro ughout the parish. Funding is pro vided by the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services and is passed through the Govern or's Office  of Elderly Affairs and 
from contributions rece ived on the meals. 

Title III-B Social Services Fund 

The Title III-B Social Serv ice s Fund is used to pay for the administration of pro grams for the elderly. Funding 
is provided by th e United States Department of Health and Human Resource s and is passed thro ugh the 
Govern or's Office of Elderly Affairs. 

Area Agency on Aging - Discretionary Fund 

The Area Agency on Aging - Discre tionary Fund accounts for any expenditures associated with the feeding 
program for the eldedy. Funding is provided by the Govemor's Office of Elderly Affairs. 



NO NM AJO R SPECIA L REVENUE FUNDS 
(Continued) 

Area Agency on Aging - Cash In Lieu Of Com m odities Fund 

The Cash In Lieu Of Commodities Fund is used to account for the administration of the Food Distribution 
Program funds provided by the United States Department of Agriculture through the Louisiana Govemor's 
Office of Eldedy Affairs. This progra m reimbumes th e service  provider on a per unit basis for each 
congregate and home-delivered meal served to an eligible participant so that United States food and 
co m modities may be purchased to supplement these progra ms. 

LCDBG Technology Program Gra nt 

The LCDBG Technology Progra m Grant was awarded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development to provide com puter training and Intere et acce ss to low-income citizens of the parish by use of 
a mobile learn ing center. Service s can only be pro vided in Council CIstricts 4 and 5 and is for a period of 
three years. 

Com m odities Distribution Fund 

The Com modities Distribution Fund accounts for th e costs of rece iving and delivering food com modities to 
the low income families within th e Parish. Funds are passed through the Louisiana Department of 
Agriculture fro m the United States Department of Agriculture. 

W eatherization and Energy Assistance Funds 

The W eatherization and Energy Assistance  pro grams are funded by the United States Department of 
Energy and passed through the Louisiana Department of Urb an and Comm unity Affairs. These funds 
account for th e labor and materials to weatherize homes, 

Senior Citizens Activities Fund 

The Senior Citizens Activities Fund accounts for the operation of the elderly handicrafts projects, Funds are 
generated from the sales of handicrafts. 

Senior Center Funds 

The Senior Center Funds are used to help subsidize the cost for meals at the senior citizens' centers . 
Funding is provided by the Governor's Office  of Elderly Affairs. 

Head Start Program Fund 

The Head Sta rt Progra m Fund accounts for th e opera tions and maintenance  of five educational ce nters . 
Funding is provided by the United States Department of Health and Human Services. 

Head Start Activity Fund 

The Head Start Activity Fund acco unts for monies raised by the families of the Head Start children for the 
purpose of providing additional activities for th e children such as field trips and graduation parties. 
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NO NM AJO R SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
(Concluded) 

Com m unity Services Block G rant Fund 

The Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Fund accounts for the outreach and housing programs 
administered by the Parish Department of Human Resources. Funding is provided by the United States 
Departm ent of Health and Hum an Service s and is passed through the Louisiana Departm ent of Labor. 

Em ergency Food and Shelter Fund 

The Emergency Food and Shelter Fund is used to provide em erg ency  food vouchers to the needy families in 
the parish. United W ay provides the funding. 

Housing Developm ent Fund 

The Housing Development Fund is funded by th e United States Department of Agdculture 
expenditures to provide home m ortgage application assistance to potential homeowners. 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31. 2003 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
investm ents 

Receivables (net of allowances for 
uncollectibles) 

Due from other funds 
Prepaid item s 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and 
withholdings payable 

Deferred revenues 
Interfund payable 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Maintenance Funds 
Courthouse, 
Jail and 
Public Parishwide 
Buildings Drainage 

$ 468,028 $ 
318.334 

1,142,984 

Fire 
Protection 
District 
No. 2 

Solid 
W aste 
Disposal 

293,406 $ 58,902 $ 1,147,294 
350,556 162,660 298,074 

687,816 147,124 
35.000 

$ 1,929,346 $ 1,366,778 $ 368,686 

$ 56,606 $ 

16,273 

33,318 $ 5,887 $ 

9,498 4,710 

10.597 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Schedule 7 (continued) 

194,138 
125,326 

97,599 

4,924 

102.523 



 

Eldedy & 
Emergency Gramercy 
Medical Parks and Recreation 
Services Recreation District 

$ 20,111 $ 457,914 
2,058 79,101 

137,907 207,400 

$ 160,076 $ 744,415 

3,721 

Padsh 
Library 

44,729 
2,098 

136.937 689.606 

Consolidated 
Road Lighting 
District No. 3A 

$ 510,905 
662.344 

240,629 

$ 64,402 $ 97,080 $ 5,175 $ 60,801 

11,379 10,586 

75.781 107.666 

11,510 

79,235 
151.546 

$ 25,955 

St. Jam es 
Transit 
System 

Crim inal 
Court 

$ 18,061 $ 2,614 

46.025 

$ 11,972 $ 5,531 

6,822 6,630 

25,955 18,794 17,363 

84,295
. 

636,749 135,483 584,887 1,387,923 61,971 
$ 160,076 $ 744,415 $ 140,658 $ 736,433 $ 1,413,878 $ 80,765 $ 17,363 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Decem ber 31. 2003 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

Receivables (net of allowances for 
uncollectibles) 

Due from other funds 
Prepaid item s 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and 
withholdings payable 

Deferred revenues 
Inta rfund payable 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Enhance d 
911 System 
Maintenance 

$ 134,198 
110.936 

336,209 

$ 26,505 

7,123 

547,715 
$ 581,343 

Title 111 
C-2 

Home Delivered 
M eals 

$ 6,150 

3,542 

$ 9,692 

$ 9,692 

C-1 
Congregate 

M eals 

7,295 

9,692 7,295 

$ 9,692 $ 7,295 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 

Schedule 7 (continued) 
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B 
Social 
Service s 

$ 7,774 

$ 7,774 

$ 6,495 

1,279 



Area AQency On AQing 

$ 92 

3,717 

3,809 

Cash 
In Lieu Of 

Commodities 

$ 31 

14.060 

LCDBG 
Technology 
Program Commodities 
Grant Distribution W eatherization 

$ 6,486 

8.031 

$ 14,091 

14,091 

$ 2,650 

1,194 

10.673 

$ 3,809 "$ 14,091 $ 14,517 
17 

$ 17 

$ 3,051 

$ 3,051 

44 

3,007 

Energy 
Assistance 

$ 8,720 

152 

$ 8,872 

$ 

8,872 

3,051 8,872 

$ 3,051 $ 8,872 



 

St. James Padsh Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Decem ber 31, 2003 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 

Receivables (net of allowances for 
uncollectibles) 

Due from other funds 
Prepaid items 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll deductions and 
withholdings payable 

Deferred revenues 
Interfund payabte 
Due to other funds 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved - undesignated 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Senior 
Citizens 
Activities 

$ 3,684 

3.684 

Senior 
Center 
Funds 

$ 2,813 

1.332 

Head Start 
Program 

$ 33,028 

2.162 

$ 4,145 

4.145 

$ 15,722 

19,468 

35.190 

Head Start 
Activity 

$ 681 

681 

4,117 8,014 
$ 7,801 $ 4,145 $ 35,190 $ 8,695 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Schedule 7 (concluded) 
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Comm unity 
Services Emergency 
Block Food and 
Grant Shelter 

$ 7,880 

$ 15,274 

15,274 

Housing 

Development 

$ 4,120 

$ 4,120 

$ 189 

189 

Total 

$ 3,265,753 
1,986,161 

4,019,997 
160.326 

$ 570,885 

110,117 
16,875 
10,673 
84.437 
792.987 



 

St. James Padsh Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended  December 3t, 2003 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Property 
Sales and use 

Intergovernmentah 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing soumes (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

Jail and 
Public Parishwide 
Buildings Draina~le 

Protection 
District 
No. 2 

Solid 
W aste 
Disposal 

$ 1,150,839 $ 690,315 $ 142,811 $ 
731,064 

4,786 
15,386 
805 

17,066 
1,200,190 

1,073,340 

452,130 
21,995 
50,400 

8,764 

16,914 
1,240,518 

557,079 

25,880 523,535 

100,970 

100,970 

1,755,497 

397 
119 

2,734 

358 
146,419 

107,160 

107.160 

4,671 
1,049 

572,653 
15,154 

4,375 
1,328,966 

1,379,450 

58,549 

159,904 39,259 (109,033) 

62,369 

(22,335) 
(22,335) 

222,273 16,924 (109,033) 

1,101,689 341,165 1,771,342 

$ 1,856,467 $ 1,323,962 $ 358,089 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Sched ule 8 (continued ) 



 

Elderly & 
Emergency 
Medical 
Services 

Parks and 
Recreation 

Gramercy 
Recreation 
District 

Parish 
Library 

$ $ 77,872 $ 141,173 $ 690,323 
731,064 731,064 

932 
98,590 16,643 

1,397 

100 
832,083 

20,973 
5,921 

36,534 
889,007 

7,010 

1,890 
270 

7.742 

3,100 
22,745 

1,898 
4,971 
8,826 

2,946 
734,809 

Consolidated 
Road Lighting 
District No. 3A 

$ 241,242 

3,244 
5,243 

12,793 

3.462 

St. James 
Transit 
System 

272,600 
134 

9,795 

Criminal 
Court 

6,554 
32,010 
221,209 

73,093 
99 60 

218,090 

1,274,410 
891,942 120,914 603,346 

773,242 84,603 181,293 

439,208 

528,202 

375,080 

2,047,652 976,545 120,914 784,639 218,090 903,282 439,208 

(1,215,569) (87,536) 37,171 (49,830) 47,894 (547,561) (179,375) 

1,075,459 

(140,110) 

224,405 

(51,459) 
(51,459) 

(138,997) 

775.746 

37,171 

98,312 

(1,097,415) 
(1,097,415) 

(1,147,245) 

1,732,132 

47,894 

1,340,029 

554,197 

(1 ,~ 6) 
552,749 

5,188 

56,783 

184,000 

(4,625) 
179,375 

$ 84,295 $ 636,749 $ 135,483 $ 584,887 $ 1,387,923 $ 61,971 $ 



 

St. James parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31,2003 

Revenues : 
Taxes: 
Property 
Sales and use 

Intergovere mentah 
Federal 
State 
Loce l 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures : 
Current: 
General govere me/nt 
Public safety 
Highways and skeets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses  

Tota l expenditures 

Ex cess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing source s (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating tra nsfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

Title Ill 
Enhanced C-2 
911 System Home Delivered 
Maintenance Meals 

$ 287,645 

1,012 
135 

1,817 

209,807 
500,416 

Congregate 
Meals 

Social 
Services 

$ $ $ 

15,513 
22,761 

15,577 
53,851 

333,282 

53,851 

85,828 

419.110 

81,306 

50,325 

(61,961) 
(11,636) 

69,670 

478,045 

$ 547,715 

21,984 
6,061 

12,222 
40,267 

40,267 

39,786 
13,208 

1,235 
54,231 

54,231 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

18,030 

II ,498) 
16,532 

16,532 

In Lieu Of 
Commodities 

$ 

35,595 

14,576 
50.171 

LCDBG 
Technology 
Pmgm m 
Gm nt 

$ 

53,774 

53,774 

53,774 

Commodities 
Distribution W eatherization 

98 

(98) 

115 

$ $ 17 

$ 

21,034 

(3,026) 
18,008 

18,008 

Energy 
Assistance 

$ 

44,771 

2,285 
47,056 

47,056 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures end Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended December 31. 2003 

RevenueS: 
Taxes: 
Property 
Sales and use 

Intergovernmental: 
Federal 
State 
Local 

Fines and forfeits 
Charges for services 
Interest 
In-kind contributions 
Other revenues 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Sanitation 
Public transportation 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Economic development. and assistance 

Capital outlay 
In-kind expenses 

Total expenditures  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures  and other finaac~g uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance , end of year 

Senior 
Citizens 
Activities 

Senior 
Center 
Funds 

Head Start 
Program 

$ 

1,303,912 
15,308 

40,130 2,296 
40,205 17,604 

50,727 17,604 

50.727 

(10,522) 

(10,522) 

14,639 

17,604 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 

32 
423,715 

1.727,659 

Head Start 

37 

17,880 
17,917 

1,303,944 15,017 

423,715 
1.727,659 15,017 

2,900 

2,900 

5,114 

$ 8,014 



Community 
Services 
Block 
Grant 

$ 

102,929 

4,468 
107,397 

107,397 

107,397 

Emergency 
Food and 
SheRer 

20,753 

16 
20,769 

Housing 
Development 

5,928 
5,928 

20,769 1,997 

1,997 

3,931 

3,422,220 
2,193,192 

2,402,925 
270~71 
93,010 
223,107 
673,580 
69,287 
423,715 
411,393 

10,183,400 

1,512,548 
997,521 
218,090 

1,379,450 
528,202 

1,806,892 
1,616,202 
1,318,991 
2,108,010 
423,715 

11,909,591 

(1,726,191) 

1,926,350 

(1,239,243) 
687,107 

3,931 (1,039,084) 

9,695,013 

$ 3,931 
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NO NM AJO R DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of general obligation bonds principal and 
interest from govem mental re sources. Revenues for th e debt service fu nds are provided by property taxes, 
sales taxes, and intere st on investm ents. The parish maintains th e following debt serv ice  funds: 

Public Im provem ent Sales Tax Bonds 

The Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds Fund acc um ulates monies for the paym ent of the Novem ber 1, 
1989, bond issue of $500,000 and the May 19, 1998, refunding bond issue of $361,000. The bonds were 
issued for impro vement to recreational facilities within the parish. Financing is provided by an irre vocable 
pledge of sales tax revenues. 

Certificates of Indebtedness Fund 

The Certificates of Indebtedness Fund accounts for the retirement of $235,000 Certifica tes of Indebtedness, 
Series 2000, and $500,000 Certificates of Indebtedness Series 2003. The certificates were issued  for 
improvements to the 911 emergency telephone system, the purchase of transit buses for use in the Head 
Start Pro gra m , and the purchase of land, recre ational facilities and equipment for the Parish recreation 
progra m . Financing is pro vided from excess revenues of th e Enhanced 911 System Maintenance Fund, the 
St. James Parish Tra nsit System Fund, and the Parks and Recreation Fund. 

Consolidated General O bligation Bonds Fund 

The Consolidated Genera l Obligation Bonds Fund accounts for the pro perty tax levies 
with the interest and principal re dem ption re quirements of the following bond issues: 

Genera l Obligation Bond Series 1993 
Genera l Obligation Bond Series 1994 
Genera l Obligation Refunding Bond Series 1998 
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St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
Com bining Balance Sheet 

December 31. 2003 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Ad valorem tax receivable, net 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance : 
Reserved for debt serv ice 
Total fund balance 

Tota l liabilities and fund balance 

Public 
Improvement 
Sales Tax 
Bonds 

$130,677 

Consolidated 
General 

Certificates of Obligation 
Indebtedness Bonds Total 

$ 1,573 
185,196 

$186,769 

$ 

$ 530,845 
60,006 

1,193,311 
$1,784,162 

$ 45,518 
45,518 

130.677 186.769 1.738.644 
130.677 186.769 

$186,769 

The notes to the financial sta tements are an integra l part of this statem ent. 

Schedule 9 

1.738.644 

$1,784,162 

$ 663,095 
245,202 

1,193,311 
$2,101,608 

$ 45,518 
45.518 

2,056,090 
2,056,090 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 2003 

Revenues 
Taxes: 
Property 

Interest 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General govern ment: 
Financial administration 

Debt service : 
Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges 
Total expenditures 

Public 
Improvement 
Sales Tax 
Bonds 

1,319 
1,319 

38,000 
12,722 
50.722 

Consolidated 
Genera l 

Certificates of Obligation 
Indebtedness Bonds 

76 
76 

55,000 
17,394 
72,394 

$1,208,129 
7,903 

1,216,032 

$1,208,129 
9,298 

1,217,427 

46,816 46,816 

695,000 
356,911 

1.098.727 

788,000 
387,027 

1,221,843 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (49,403) (72,318) 117,305 (4,416) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Bond proce eds 
Operating tra nsfers out 
Total other financing source s (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other 
financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

50,400 

50.400 

997 

129.680 

64,467 
500.000 

(305,522) 
258,945 

186,627 

142 

$ 130,677 $ 186,769 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part to this statem ent. 
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114,867 
500,000 

(305,522) 
309,345 

117,305 304,929 

1.621.339 1.751.161 

$1,738,644 $ 2,056,090 



NO NM AJO R CA PITA L PRO JECTS FUNDS 

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities 
other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. The following are the padsh's ca pital projects 
fu nds: 

Parishwide Sewer Construction Fund 

The Padshwide Sewer Construct ion Fund accounts for expenditures associated with the pro posed 
construction of a padshwide sewer system. The program was financed by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (75%) and the St, James Padsh Council (25%) through the sale of general obligation 
bonds. The pro gra m consisted of three phases of which two phases have been com pleted. Actual 
constru ction on the third phase has not yet begun. 

CDBG Road Im provem ent Fund 

The CDBG Road Improvement Fund accounts for padshwide road im provements funded with a Louisiana 
Comm unity Development Block Gra nt. Funding is provided from the State of Louisiana, Division of 
Adm inistra tion, Office of Comm unity Development. 

Library Construct ion Fund 

The Library Construction Fund accounts for the expenditures to co nstru ct a bra nch library in Vachede. 
Funding is provided by transfers from the Parish Libra ry Fund. 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31. 2003 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investm ents 
Due from other funds 
Total assets 

Liabilities and fund balance 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Total liabilities 

Fund balance: 
Unreserved 

Padshwide 
Sewer 

Construction 

$ 400,601 
23,646 

$ 424,247 

CDBG 

$ 27 

$ 27 

$ $ 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 424,247 $ 27 

Library 
Construction Total 

$ 1,014 

$ 80,249 
80,249 

$ 401,642 
23.646 

$ 80,249 
80,249 

$ 80,249 $ 504,523 

The notes to the financial statem ents are an integral part of this statem ent. 
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St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds 
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

For the year ended Decem ber 31,2003 

Revenues: 
Intere st 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
Highways and stre ets 
Culture and recreation 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

Parishwide 
Sewer 

Construction 

$ 4,594 
4,594 

CDBG 
Road 

Improvement 

$ 

29,360 

Library 
Construction Total 

$ 

5,706 
1.248.706 
1.254.412 

$ 4.594 
4,594 

29,360 
5,706 

1,248,706 
1,283,772 

4,594 (29,360) (1,254,412) (1,279,178) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Opera ting transfers in 

Operating transfers out (73,153I 
Total other financing sources (uses) (73,153) 

29,360 1,273,568 

29,360 1,273,568 

1,302,928 

(73,153) 
1,229,775 

Exce ss (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses (68,559) 19,156 (49,403) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Fund balance, end of year 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Schedule 12 



ST. JAMES PARISH CO UNCIL 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Com pensation Paid 
Parish Council Mem bers and Parish President 

For the Year Ended Decem ber 31. 2003 

Ralph A. Patin, Jr., Chairman 
Elton M . Aubert 
Elwyn R. Bocz 
Jam es i . Brazan 
W ilson F. M albrough, Jr. 
James P. Mitchell 
Timothy P. Roussel 
Dale J. Hymel, Jr., Parish President 

The notes to the financial statem ents are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 14,400 
13,200 
13,200 
13,200 
13,200 
13,200 
13,200 
92.347 

$185947 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Program Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Contracts and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 

For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Revenues: 
Intefgovernmental: 
GOEA: 
Supportive Services 
Area Agency Administration 
Title III D 
Title III E 
Legal 
Audit 
Misce llaneous 
Senior Center 
C-1 Congregate Meals 
C~2 Home Delivered Meals 

Discretionary (PCOA) 
Deferred revenue 

Pro gra m service fee: 
Sales of meals 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Meals 
Distributed adm inistrative costs 
Utilities 
Legal fees 
Other costs 
Total expenditures 

Title III-B 
For the 6 months ended 
06/30103 12/31103 

$ 13,434 
5,331 
839 

4,401 
750 
894 

1,575 

27,224 

677 
19,810 
993 
750 

4,886 
27.116 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 108 

Fund balance, beginning of period 

Fund balance, end of period 

$ 12,904 
5,333 
658 

3,902 
750 

2,025 

1,235 

$ 26,338 
10,664 
1,697 
8,303 
1,500 
894 

3,600 

1,235 

27 
20,610 
1,136 
750 

4,592 
27,115 

1o8) 

1o8 

704 
40,420 
2,129 
1,500 
9,478 
54,231 

For the 6 months ended 
06/30/03 12/31103 

$ $ 

14,023 

4,863 
18,886 

25,462 

13 

14,022 

2,734 

4,625 
21,381 

14,767 

25 

28,045 

2,734 

9,488 
40,267 

40,229 

38 

(6,589) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statem ent. 
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6,589 

(6,589) 

$ $ 



C-2 Home Delivered Meals Senior Center 
For the 6 months ended 
06/30/03 12/31/03 

For the 6 months ended 
06/30103 12/31/03 

For the 6 months ended 
06/30103 12/31103 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

6,470 8,838 15,308 

19,137 19,137 38,274 
7,461 10,569 18,030 

3,950 3,950 2,296 2,296 (1,498) (1,498) 

5,958 
25,095 

33,162 

25 

5,669 
28,756 

20,639 

25 

11,627 
53,851 

53,801 

50 

7,404 9,484 

716 

16,888 

716 

(8,092) 8,092 

(8,092) 

(934) 934 

4,284 

265 

5,100 
9,649 

(2,188) 2,188 

(2,188) 

16,532 

10,836 

265 

5,431 
16,532 



 

St. James Perish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Program Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 

Contracts and Grants Provided  Through the Louisiana Govemor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 
For the year ended  December 31, 2003 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental: 
GOEA: 
Supportive Services 
Area Agency Administration 
Title III D 
Title Ill E 
Legal 
Audit 
Supplemental Senior Center 
Senior Center 
C-1 Congregate Meals 
C-2 Home Delivered  Meals 
Discretionary (PCOA) 
Deferred revenue 

Program service  fee: 
Sales of meals 
Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Meals 
Distributed administrative costs 
Utilities 
Leg al fees 
Other costs 
Total expenditures 

Ex cess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of period 

Cash-th-Lieu of Commodities 
For the 6 months ended 
06/30/03 12/31/63 Total 

$ $ $ 

29.745 

29,745 

(29,745) 

Fund balance, end of period $ 129,745) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement, 

14,576 14,576 

14,576 

50,171 

$ 26,338 
10,664 
1,697 
8,303 
1,500 
894 

3,600 
15,308 
28,045 
38,274 
18,030 
23,293 

21,115 
197,061 

172,629 
40,420 
2,394 
1,500 
15,713 
232,656 

(35,595) (35,595) 



 

St. James Parish Council 
Schedule of Program Expenditures - Budget vs. Actual 

Contracts and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 
For the year ended Dece m ber 31, 2003 

Title III B - Supportive services 
Access 
Distributed administra tive costs 

Legal serv ices 
Total 

Title III C - Area Agency Administra tion 
Distributed adm inistrative costs 
Other costs 
Total 

Title III E - Caregivers 
Distributed administrative costs 
Used for meals 
Utilities 
Other costs 
Total 

Title III F - Preventative Health 
Other costs 

M iscellaneous 
Other costs 

Total Title III B Fund 

$ 26,800 

1.500 
28.300 

10,700 
900 

6,100 
200 

2,900 
2.100 
11.300 

4.500 

Variance 
Favora ble 

(UnfavorableI 

$ 25,378 $ 1,422 

1,500 
26.878 

10,664 
894 

4,378 
189 

2,129 
3.132 
9.828 

2.186 

3.781 

36 
6 
42 

719 

$ 57,400 $ 54,231 $ 3,169 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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St. James Parish Council 
Schedule of Program Expenditures - Budget vs. Actual 

Contracts and Grants Provided Through the Louisiana Governor's Office of Elderly Affairs (GOEA) 
For the year ended December 31, 2003 

Title III C-2 Home Delivered Meals 
Meals 
Office supplies 
Total 

Title III C-1 Congregate Meals 
Meals 
Office supplies 
Total 

Senior Center 
Congregate meals 
Hom e delivered m eals 
Other costs 
Total 

Discretionary - PCOA 
Congregate meals 
Hom e delivered meals 
Utilities 
Other costs 
Total 

Cash-in-Lieu of Com m odities 
Congregate meals 
Hom e delivered meals 
Total 

$ 49,700 
100 

$ 49,800 

$ 37,400 

$ 4,300 
8,100 
300 

$ 13,000 
25,800 

$ 38,800 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

Actual 

$ 53,800 
51 

$ 53,851 

$ 40,229 
38 

$ 40,267 

$ 3,360 
13,528 

716 
$ 17,604 

$ 4,372 
6,464 
265 

$ 17,072 
33,099 

$ 50.171 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (4,100) 
49 

$ (4,051) 

$ (2,829) 
(38) 

$ (2,867) 

$ 1,340 
(3,628) 
384 

$ (1,904) 

$ (72) 
1,636 

35 
69 

$ 1,668 

$ (4,072) 



 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Schedule of Priority Services 

Title III, Part B - Grant for Supportive Services 
For the year ended Decem ber 31, 2003 

Access (30%) 
Access 

Legal (5%) 
Legal assistance  

Total Title III B - Supportive 
service s expenditures 

Title III B - Supportive service s grant 

For the 6 m onths ended 
12/31/03 Total 

$ 12,954 $ 12,424 $ 25,378 

750 750 

$ 13,704 $ 13,174 $ 26,878 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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100 

$ 26,338 

% of 
GOEA Grant 

94% 

6% 
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Federal Gra ntor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor Name/ 
Pra qram Title 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Education 
School Braakfast Program 
National School Lunch Program 
Summer Food Service Program for Children 
Total United States Department of Agriculture 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Transportation 
and Development - Federal Transit Administration 
Nonurbanized Formula Grants, Section 5311 
FTA Grant LA-18-X020 
FTA Gra nt LA-18-X021 

Capital Investments Grants, Section 5309 
FTA Gra nt LA-03-0101 

Capital Assistance Program for Elderly Persons and 
Persons W ith Disabilities, Section 5310 
FTA grant LA-16-0028 

Job Access and Reverse Commute Program 
FPN LA-37-X007-0O/Scope #300-03 

Total United States Department of Transportation 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Public 
Safety and Corrections 
Emergency Management Performance Grant 

Passed through United W ay of America 
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Progra m 

Passed through Louisiana Military Department Office of 

Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness 
Hazard Mitigation Grant 
DMA Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Disaster Assistance Progra m 
Total United States Department of Homeland Security 

CFDA 
Number 

10.553 
10.555 
10.559 

20.509 
20.509 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

None 
None 
None 

SPN 741-47-0109 
SPN 741-47-0108 

Federa l 
Expenditura s 

$ 21,561 
31,963 
63,122 
136,646 

67,365 
77,577 

20.500 SPN 736-99-1085 66,715 

20.513 

20.516 

97.042 

97.024 

97.039 
97.039 
97.036 

SPN 741-4 7-0001 

72-6001228 

20-3684-00 

1380-093-0001 
1437-093-0001 
093-99093-00 

29,191 

30.750 
271,598 

51,029 

20.753 

351,350 
28,125 
129,065 
580,322 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Health and 
Hospitals - Office of Community Services 
W eatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042 557510 21.034 
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Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor Name/ 
Proqram Title 

St. Jam es Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Natural Resources 
Coastal Zone Management 
Coastal Impact Assistance Program 
Total United States Department of Commerce 

Direct program - Administration for Children, Youth, 
and Families - Head Start 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Labor - 
Community Services Block Grant 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Health 
and Human Resources - Low Income Home 
Energy Assistance 

Passed through Louisiana Department of Social Services - 
Office of Family Support 
TANF - Transportation 

Passed thro ugh Louisiana Governor's Office of 
Eldedy Affairs - Special Programs for the Aging 
Title III - Part B Grant for Supportive 
Services and Senior Centers 

Title III - Part C for Nutrition Services 

(Area Agency Administration) 
Title III-C-1 
Title III-C-2 
Title Ilt-D 
Title IlI-E 
USDA - Cash-in-lieu of commodities 
Total United States Department of Health 
and Human Services 

CFDA 
Number 

11.419 
11.419 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

25150-02-02 
2513-02-06 

93.600 

93.569 554690 

Federa l 
Expenditure s 

23,250 
164,305 
187,555 

1,303,912 

102,929 

93.668 665803 44.771 

93.558 107.344 

93.044 588804 23,868 

93.045 
93.045 
93.045 
93.043 
93.052 
10.570 

Passed thro ugh Louisiana Division of Administration - 
Office of Community Development 
Comm unity Development Block Grant 14.219 

588804 
588804 
588804 
588804 
588804 
588804 

7,996 
21,984 
15,513 

1,697 
6,227 
35,595 

1,671,836 

Passed thro ugh Louisiana Commission on Law 
Enforcement and Administration of Criminal Justice 
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 16.540 J02-7-005 3,056 
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Federal Gra ntor/ 
Pass-Through Grantor Name/ 
Proqra m Title 

St. James Parish Council 
Convent, Louisiana 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Year Ended Decem ber 31. 2003 

Food Distribution (Commodities) 

Total Federa l Assistance Expended 

CFDA 
Number 

10.550 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 
Federal 

Expenditures 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federa l gra nt activity of the St. James 
Parish Council and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non- 
Pro fit Organizations. 

Schedule 17 (concluded) 
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St. James Parish Council 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended Decem ber 31. 2003 

SECTION I-SUM MARY O F AUDIT'S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Intern al control over financial reporting 

Material weaknesses identified? 

Reportable conditions identified that are not considered 
to be m aterial weaknesses? 

Noncom pliance m aterial to financial statements notes? 

FEDERAL AW ARDS 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weaknesses identified? 

Reportable conditions identified that are not considere d 
to be m aterial weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are require d to be reported 

in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133? 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA No. 
11.419 

20.509 

97.039 

Unqualified 

Yes ._ .~_X None reported 

Yes X No 

Yes X None reported 

Unqualified 

. Yes ._X_X No 

N~m e of F~dor~l Prooram 

U.S. Department of Com merce: 
Coastal Im pact Assistance Program 
Coastal Zone Management 

U.S. Departm ent of Transportation - Nonurbanized Form ula Grants, Section 5311 

U.S. Departm ent of Hom eland Security: 
Hazard Mitigation Grant 
DMA Hazard M itigation Plan 

93.569 U.S. Department of Health and Human Services - Com m unity Services Block Grant 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between types A and B programs: $300,000 

Audit qualified as Iow -dsk auditee: 

Schedule 18 (continued) 
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St, James Perish Council 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 

SECTIO N II-FINANCIAL STATEM ENT FINDINGS 

None 

SECTION Ill-FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None 

Schedule 18 (concluded) 
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St. Jam es Padsh Council 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the Year Ended Decem ber 31, 2003 

SECTIO N I-PRIO R AUDIT FINDINGS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2002 

Finding No. 

None 

Pm aram 

Schedule 19 
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